
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. 0. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
May 14, 2020 

9:00 a .m. 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 14, 2020. 

Please note, pursuant to Governor Newsom 's Executive Order N-29-20 and the California Shelter-in
Place mandate, which prevents all but essential travel, public participation for this meeting will be via 
teleconference only. 

You may watch the Board Meeting live or archived at https://www.bart.gov/about/bod/multimedia 

Presentation materials will be available via Legistar at https://bart.legistar.com 

You may also join the Board Meeting via Zoom by calling 1-877-853-5257 and entering access code 790-512-
1598. 

If you wish to make a public comment: 
1) Submit written comments via emai l to board.meeting@bart.gov, using "public comment" as the 

subject line. Your comment wi ll be read into the record and will become a permanent part of the file . 
Please submit your comments as far in advance as possible. Emai led comments must be received 
before 9:00 a.m. in order to be included in the record. 

2) Call 1-877-853-5257, enter access code 790-512-1598, and dial *9 to raise your hand when you wish 
to speak. 

Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes per person. 

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, or 
adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a Director 
or from a member of the audience. 

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who are 
limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made within one and 
five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please contact the Office of the 
District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing Committees 
are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod). 

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CA TRANBART/subscriber/new?topic id=CATRANBART 1904) 
or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets (in PDF format) 
are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in person or 
U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-601 1; or telephone 510-464-
6083. 

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire in 
connection with: 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance. 
C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of April 23 , 2020.* 
Board requested to authorize. 
(Minutes will be available Tuesday, May 12, 2020). 

B. Resolution Consolidating 2020 District Elections.* 
Board requested to adopt. 

C. Extension of Agreement No. 6M2049 with Macias, Gini & 
O'Connell, LLP for External Audit Services.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

D. Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter Financial Report.* For information. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT-15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 
Director McPartland, Chairperson 

A. COVID-19 Update: Impact of and Responses to COVID-19.* 
For information. 

B. Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget Overview.* For information. 

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Dufty, Chairperson 

A. Award of Contract No. 20LZ-130, Train Control Room Battery 
Systems Replacement, Phase 3. * Board requested to authorize. 

B. Award of Agreements for Design Support during Construction for 
BAR T's Train Control Modernization Program.* 
a. Agreement No. 6M8168, with Parsons Transportation Group, Inc. 
b. Agreement No. 6M8169, with Systra Consulting, Inc. 
Board requested to authorize. 

* Attachment available 2 of3 



C. Change Order to Contract No. 09AF-l l 1A, TBT Cross Passage Doors 
Replacement, with DMZ Builders, for Door Replacement and 
Re-sequencing (C.O. No. 33). * Board requested to authorize. 

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Saltzman, Chairperson 

A. West Oakland BART Transit Oriented Development Update.* 
For information. 

B. Update on BART and Valley Transportation Authority Phase I.* 
For information. 

7. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, 
Administrative, and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

8. BOARD MATTERS 

A. Report of the Personnel Review Special Committee. For information. 

B. Board Member Reports. 
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232 .3(d) are 
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board 
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board 
Meeting.) 

C. Roll Call for Introductions. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

D. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

* Attachment available 3 of3 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,862nd Meeting 

April 23 , 2020 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on April 23, 2020, convening at 9:01 a.m. via 
teleconference, pursuant to Governor Gavin Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20 and the California 
Shelter-in-Place mandate. President Simon presided; Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors Present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Dufty, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman and 
Simon. 

None. 

President Simon gave instructions on the virtual meeting, accessing presentation materials online, Public 
Comment, and Board Members' remarks. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of March 26, 2020 (Special) and April 9, 2020 (Regular). 

2. Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Certain Expenditures from Proceeds of 
Indebtedness. 

3. Amendment No. 3 to Concession Permit M342-12 with Imperial Parking Corporation for 
Administration of Parking Permit Programs. 

4. Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with QIC Limited to Study Improved 
Connections to the Shops at Tanforan Mall at the San Bruno BART Station. 

President Simon called for Public Comment. No comments were received. 

Director Ames requested that Item 2-B, Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Certain 
Expenditures from Proceeds of Indebtedness, be removed from the Consent Calendar. 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Raburn seconded the motions, which 
carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes: 9 - Directors Allen, Ames, Dufty, Foley, Li, McPartland, 
Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes: 0. (Director Dufty ' s vote was received later due to audio/visual 
technical difficulties.) 

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of March 26, 2020 (Special) and April 9, 2020 (Regular) be 
approved. 

2. That the General Manager or his designee be authorized to execute a third amendment of the 
Concession Permit M342-12 with Imperial Parking Corporation to extend the term of the permit 

-1-



DRAFT 

for six months, with four options for subsequent three-month extensions, through March 30, 
2022, and establish new rates for the provision of services during the extension term. 

3. That the General Manager or his designee be authorized to execute an Amendment to 
Memorandum of Understanding with QIC Limited in connection with the San Bruno Station and 
The Shops at Tanforan (Tanforan) to continue to pursue a Feasibility Analysis and Assessment 
to determine the commercial viability of integrating the San Bruno Station with the proposed 
initial phase of Tanforan redevelopment. 

President Simon brought Item 2-B, Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Certain 
Expenditures from Proceeds of Indebtedness, before the Board. Ms. Rosemarie Poblete, 
Controller/Treasurer, and Mr. Robert Powers, General Manager, presented the item. 

Director Ames commented on the following subjects: the debt terms, the amount of debt that would 
potentially be incurred to purchase the train cars, re-opening the contract with Bombardier to re-negotiate 
the train car price, and her desire to refrain from approving the Item until cost reductions with 
Bombardier have been considered. 

President Simon moved adoption of Resolution No. 5440, Resolution of the San Francisco Bay Area 
Rapid Transit District Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Certain Expenditures from Proceeds of 
Indebtedness. Director Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by roll call vote. Ayes: 7 - Directors 
Dufty, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes: 2 - Directors Allen and Ames. 
(Director Dufty's vote was received later due to audio/visual technical difficulties.) 

President Simon called for Public Comment. 

Ms. Williams read a written comment submitted by Joe Kunzler into the record. 

Aleta Dupree and Roland Lebrun addressed the Board via telephone. 

President Simon commented on Board Members' expression of gratitude to essential workers in the 
BART system at the previous meeting; thanked Station Agents, Train Operators, System Service 
Workers, Car Cleaners, Transit Vehicle Maintenance staff, Electrical Technicians, Track and Structural 
Workers, Shopkeepers, Train Control staff, Clerical workers, Communications staff, Building Workers, 
eBAR T Workers, and other employees for keeping the system moving; noted that thousands of essential 
workers are being served by the trains every day; and thanked and lauded the essential workers for their 
service. 

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of COVID-19 
Update: Impact of and Responses to COVID-19, before the Board. Mr. Powers; Ms. Pamela Herhold, 
Assistant General Manager, Performance and Budget; Ms. Alicia Trost, Chief Communications Officer; 
Ms. Tamar Allen, Assistant General Manager, Operations; Chief of Police Ed Alvarez; Ms. Gia Hole, 
Assistant General Manager, Administration; and Mr. Val Menotti, Chief Planning and Development 
Officer, presented the item. The presentation contained sections on Ridership, Federal Stimulus 
Legislation, Long-Term Budget Projections, Temporary Station Entrance Closures, Front Line Safety 
Efforts, and Employee and Labor Partner Engagement. 

-2-



DRAFT 

Aleta Dupree and Sharmaine Baltimore addressed the Board via telephone. 

Director McPartland commented on Aleta Dupree ' s comment, noting that waiver of the respiratory 
protection requirement for those riding on trains would jeopardize the potential cleanliness of the trains 
and facilitate cross-contamination in the trains. 

Director Saltzman thanked staff and Board Members for their work to secure the federal funding 
allocation from the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and inquired about and/or 
commented on the following subjects: closure of the fiscal gap for this year; use of some of the federal 
funding during the next fiscal year; the need for more funding for the next fiscal year; her appreciation 
for the work to reduce costs this fiscal year to expand the use of the federal funds as far as possible into 
the next fiscal year; her gratitude for staffs work on the ridership scenarios for next year, noting 
improvement in the scenarios and that the low revenue scenario was not low enough; that 20% ridership 
may not be reached by August; that reaching 30% ridership takes longer when the beginning of the 
increase in ridership is low; Governor Newsom's comment regarding gradual recovery; presentation of 
an additional very low/worst-case revenue scenario at the next meeting; constant changes and updates 
to the revenue scenarios; the difference between the potential maximum cost savings amount and the 
highest ridership projections; Board support regarding the proposed budget reductions and feedback 
from employees and unions regarding the proposal to forego wage increases; generating other budget 
reduction options; obtaining outside support and balancing the budget if no outside support is received 
without implementing lay-offs; whether additional information regarding other potential budget 
reduction options would be provided; her desire for the budget to be separately agendized for future 
meetings; clarification of enforcement of the mask requirement; essential workers ' ability to travel to 
work amidst the mask requirement; calls from the public and elected officials for BART to distribute 
masks to all riders; BART's inability to provide masks to all riders and employees; the possibility of 
elected officials assisting with procuring masks for BART to distribute; providing updates to the Board 
regarding enforcement of the mask requirement; her gratitude for the progress in providing masks to 
employees and the importance of offering protection to employees; her gratitude for employees who 
have offered to create masks; her appreciation of the $15 personal protective equipment (PPE) allowance 
for employees; the public comment regarding the PPE allowance and ensuring that the allowance is 
provided; whether the $15 PPE allowance would be provided to all employees; her gratitude for BART 
workers who continue to work to transport essential workers; the increase in attendance; whether the 
Homeless Outreach Teams (HOT) and Coordinated Outreach Referral Engagement (CORE) teams had 
been more successful in assisting people with housing in temporary shelters or hotels; whether staff is 
connecting with counties to ensure that homeless individuals at BART stations are eligible to receive 
housing or shelter; and her request for a memo to the Board regarding the HOT and CORE teams' use 
of vouchers for hotels. 

Director Dufty commented on the following subjects: his telephone meeting with Mr. Tim Chan, Group 
Manager, Station Planning, Systems Development; Mr. Armando Sandoval, Community Outreach 
Specialist, Police Department; Chief Alvarez; Mr. Powers; Director Li; President Simon; the San 
Francisco Chief of Staff, Sean Elsbemd; the manager of San Francisco ' s homeless outreach effort; San 
Francisco Chief of Police William "Bill" Scott; San Francisco Deputy Chief of Police Greg McEachem; 
and Assistant Chief of Police Michael (Mike) Redmond, regarding efforts to address the COVID-19-
vulnerable homeless population throughout the system; Mr. Sandoval ' s ability to share information with 
the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the San Francisco HOT teams and his 
access to information from the BART Police Department; the development of San Francisco ' s hotel 
programs; his impression that Mr. Elsbemd is committed to working with BART and his appreciation 

-3-



DRAFT 

for the presence of Chief Scott, Deputy Chief McEachern, and Assistant Chief Redmond at the meeting; 
the importance of coordination between the BART Police Department and San Francisco Police 
Department, given the closure of predominantly southside entrances at BART stations; Chief Scott' s 
assertion that his command staff would be in coordination with Chief Alvarez, noting that the section of 
Market Street between the Civic Center and Powell Street stations had been rough later in the evenings; 
his contact with San Francisco Supervisor Matt Haney to request that he temporarily provide BART with 
100-150 masks per day for the downtown San Francisco stations and Supervisor Haney's agreement to 
provide the masks. 

Director Saltzman requested that staff ask Board Members for assistance if necessary, as efforts move 
forward in Alameda and Contra Costa counties and the cities within the counties. 

Director Raburn inquired about and/or commented on the following subjects: his appreciation for the 
efforts of managers, staff working remotely, and frontline workers who report to work every day, noting 
that they are essential to BART's overall mission; his support for future Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act funding distribution to be means-based and contingent on a recovery 
strategy that addresses seamless connections, lifeline service needs, and financial stability; whether the 
Stimulus 4 includes childcare support, noting that 64% of the absentee rate was due to employee' s need 
to care for their children at home; his disappointment in the exclusion of childcare in stimulus packages, 
noting that childcare could be a continuing issue for many employees; the omission of station-by-station 
ridership data from the presentation; whether Fruitvale Station was still one of the leading stations 
regarding ridership; gratitude for the provision of some early bus service from Pittsburg/Bay Fair Station 
and through Fruitvale Station into San Francisco; the omission of heat maps from the presentation; 
whether heat maps were still generated; whether heat maps show that BART is facilitating social 
distancing on trains; whether heat maps were still monitored each morning; whether ridership was 
generated from Pittsburg/Bay Point Station to the 19th Street Oakland (19th Street) and 12th Street 
Oakland City Center (12th Street) stations; whether passengers were embarking at the 19th and 12th 
Street stations; that running all long trains and trying to meet healthcare needs is a costly effort; his 
concern over further downward ridership and revenue projections; that Bay Area residents are more 
resilient than the projections reflect; that recovery will require that BART has adequate security and 
cleanliness in stations and that BART follows Governor Newsom' s six principles, noting that these 
factors are essential to restoring the public confidence in public transit; his gratitude for Chief Alvarez' s 
new plan for enforcement and station entrance closures; his observation of an absence of Police Officers 
at fixed posts at the 12th and 19th Street stations and his request that Police Officers be disbursed to 19th 
and 12th Street stations, noting that Station Agents are afraid because they are the only people present 
to grapple with regular issues; whether Chief Alvarez's April 13th deployment plan allows for a sufficient 
number of Police Officers to be deployed at the 12th or 19th Street stations; whether Revenue Protection 
Officers were being deployed on a continuing basis; whether any Alameda County outreach, similar to 
the HOT and CORE teams, had been provided; and the existence of a gaping hole in social services. 

Director Dufty noted that Mr. Chan was negotiating a contract with Alameda County and that Mr. Chan 
could provide a memo to Board Members regarding the contract. 

Director McPartland thanked staff for their hard work; asked whether a sufficient amount of masks have 
been acquired and whether PPE would be supplied to employees moving forward ; and commented on 
members of the public boarding trains without masks and his Roll Call for Introductions (RCI) request 
regarding decontamination of trains on a daily basis, indicating that cross-contamination is possible if 
patrons do not wear respiratory protection on trains. 

-4-



DRAFT 

Director Li asked for confirmation of the absence of known positive COVID-19 test results among 
frontline employees; thanked frontline employees, transit workers, and BART management for their 
work; and commented on BART staff and frontline workers' precautionary efforts. Director Li inquired 
about and/or commented on the following subjects: her alignment with many comments by Director 
Saltzman regarding federal funding; her gratitude for BART staff's work to advocate for BART's needs; 
BART needs being appropriately met by the MTC's first tranche allocation; her gratitude for the 
leadership of President Simon and other Board Members for acting for emergency funding; and the letter 
from Mr. Jeffrey Tumlin, Director of Transportation for the San Francisco Municipal Transportation 
Agency (SFMTA), to Ms. Therese McMillan, Executive Director of the MTC, regarding the need to 
consider equity and social impacts of future tranche allocations. She read excerpts from Mr. Tumlin's 
letter to Ms. McMillian and she inquired about and/or commented on the following additional subjects: 
her agreement with the concept that BART is the people's system; BART's service to transit-dependent 
individuals; that the demographics of BART's ridership are the same as the demographics of local 
communities across the bay; that acknowledging equity and allocating future tranches based on data
driven equity measures is the right and just course of action and that this action would help protect 
BART; her request for management to consider Mr. Tumlin's letter when thinking about future tranches; 
her appreciation for the revised ridership scenarios and support for Director Saltzman's request for a 
lower scenario; the new "normal" for the budget and fundamental shift in the revenue structure; her 
request for scenarios with radically differently revenue sources and analysis of each of scenario, 
including drawbacks, necessary policy actions, and scale of necessary cost-saving actions; her 
appreciation for Chief Alvarez and staff's approach regarding the public health order requiring face 
coverings; her encouragement for the education route rather than enforcement-first strategies; her 
agreement with Aleta Dupree's comment regarding helping people comply with the Order; feedback 
regarding the face covering requirement when supply is lacking or people are unaware of the Order; 
Ms. Baltimore's comment regarding customers arriving at the San Francisco International Airport 
(SFO); her agreement that employees and transit workers should be prioritized for the provision of PPE; 
her encouragement to provide face coverings to riders rather than issuing citations or forcibly removing 
them from the system; and her encouragement for staff to contact local jurisdictions and county health 
departments that issued the public health orders regarding the challenge of providing face coverings to 
members of the public. 

Director Dufty inquired about and/or commented on the following subjects: the reassurance provided by 
the data presented and the ingenuity and thoughtfulness of the executive team and staff; the inspiration 
from the percentage of employees reporting to work as they adjust to childcare and family needs; Board 
Members' clear and consistent communication of their appreciation and commitment to maintaining 
frontline operators and staff and using tools, such as hiring and travel freezes and federal and state 
support so that BART can adapt and change as warranted by circumstances and COVID-19; his 
acknowledgement of and gratitude for Aleta Dupree's comment, noting that all signage shows different 
face covering formats that are allowed and inhibit the spread of the COVID-19 virus and that N-95 masks 
are only needed by medical and key frontline personnel; that BART is being creative and clearly 
communicating; riders' expectation that BART is safe for them and that BART's priority is riders and 
employees' safety; his outreach to San Francisco Supervisor Haney to request assistance with acquiring 
fabric masks for the downtown San Francisco stations, noting that BART has struggled with acquiring 
masks; his gratitude to Sharmaine Baltimore and the Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU) for Ms. 
Baltimore's suggestion regarding SFO; his outreach to SFO and San Francisco Travel to request 
assistance with supplying fabric masks or bandanas at the San Francisco International Airport Station; 
his gratitude for the BART Police Officers' Association's (POA) flexibility regarding scheduling; that 

-5-



DRAFT 

BART will continue to refine the budget; that the grant that BART is receiving is the product of BART 
working early and being proactive; his acknowledgement of Board Members who are engaged with MTC 
Commissioners, noting that this engagement has deepened and improved BART's connection and 
communication with the MTC; his recognition of Mr. Powers and staff for their work with the MTC; his 
support for collaboration among transit partners; that BART's work and collaboration among transit 
partners are signs that BART can overcome some concerns in the future; Chief Alvarez' concern to avoid 
harsh situations related to enforcement of local and county health requirements; that BART should 
address the needs of individuals and that riders expect the system to be secure and safe with respect to 
face coverings and social distancing; and that riders and employees deserve that the mandate be followed. 

Director Ames expressed appreciation for Board Members ' comments and staffs efforts to develop the 
cost saving action plan and budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 and inquired about and/or commented on 
the following subjects: how BART could plan for a deeper recession; her support for Director Saltzman's 
initiative related to the worst-case scenario; clarification of reducing the Priority Capital Programs 
allocation by $62 million and pushing out the Rail Car Program; her support for re-prioritizing projects 
and her concern over incurring .debt to postpone a project; encouragement to review FY 2021 proposals 
and add potential budget reductions for FY 2022; potentially re-negotiating contracts, such as re
negotiating the rail car price with Bombardier; the difficulty of re-negotiating existing contracts and 
preparing for a severe economic crisis; ideas to prepare for FY 2021 and FY 2022, including a 10% 
salary reduction for all employees; collaborating and developing ideas to help BART survive the crisis, 
including potentially reducing Board Members ' stipends; budget reductions to prepare for FY 2021 and 
FY 2022; her discomfort with an interim budget plan that does not show necessary reductions beyond 
the proposed reductions for FY 2021 ; the fluidity of the budget situation and reviewing the worst-case 
scenario option; her discomfort with a wait-and-see approach in the middle of FY 2021 ; developing a 
scenario that keeps staff employed and weathers the storm of this economic crisis; that the FY 2021 and 
FY 2022 concept cost reduction would translate into a two-year budget; her support for a two-year budget 
scenario; noting the 16% national unemployment rate and that the current unemployment rate is the 
highest unemployment rate since the Great Depression; the lack of a national response to provide PPE; 
issues that may impact ridership, including potential corporate defaults, bankruptcies, decreases in the 
stock market, absence of an additional stimulus package, or the amount of funding received; her 
commendation of staff for their work to secure funding assistance; her desire to review additional budget 
reductions for FY 2021 and FY 2022 and a two-year budget, instead of an interim budget, by June; 
consideration of BART's long-term survival; increasing operating costs; the potential $500 million 
operating shortfall in ten years; and the importance of reviewing all options, including contracts. 

President Simon commented on the following subjects: that Board Members ' are tasked with providing 
policy advice and oversight; her commendation of staffs strong leadership during this crisis; her 
acknowledgement of the results of Board Members' efforts to solve problems, such as locating PPE, 
communicating with local, state, and federal legislators, and working cooperatively with the BART 
Police Department and other local elected officials to acquire more resources; that cooperative 
conversation is needed more now than ever; that BART will begin to exist at a new "normal" standard; 
that all the modelling does not suggest that BART will be in a great place any time soon; that the stations 
are gleaning and beautiful; her recognition of the work performed by safety staff, budgetary staff, and 
finance staff; her pride in BART; that the work is only beginning with regard to securing the system' s 
stability in the future ; her communication with and support of BART staff, including frontline staff and 
safety staff, and Chief Alvarez' s vision; that Mr. Powers encouraged the Board Members to contact other 
elected officials to advise of BART' s status and discuss mutual support; the strength of regional 
collaboration with transit partners and her gratitude for this collaboration for future funding allocations 

-6-



DRAFT 

and development of new synchronized transportation systems for essential employees throughout the 
pandemic. 

Director Allen thanked and commended Ms. Herhold and her staff, Government Affairs staff, and other 
Board Members for their work to secure stimulus funding, and inquired about and/or commented on the 
following subjects: whether faregates had been closed; confirmation that all faregates, particularly in the 
San Francisco stations, were open; that the purpose of closing station entrances was to filter riders into 
a few faregates so that personnel could be posted at faregates to ensure compliance with the face covering 
requirement, BART rules, and laws; the timeline for closure of faregates ; feedback from riders that 
personnel are not present at all the faregates ; her hope that personnel will be posted at all faregates; her 
satisfaction with the emergency staffing agreement for the BART Police Department (PD); her desire to 
reduce faregate openings to only a few faregates to establish fixed posts at all open faregates; clarification 
of the power savings limitation due to contractual obligations; whether long-term clean energy contracts 
are difficult to un-do; whether the reduction of allocations on the capital side would be combined with 
re-prioritizing capital project spending; her gratitude for Ms. Herhold' s generation of potential cost 
savings actions; the difference between the total amount of some cost savings options and the potential 
amount of the budget deficit; that some cost savings options are deferred payments that will need to be 
made later; the absence of strong leadership; her hope that strong leadership is forthcoming; the lack of 
drive to make hard decisions or discuss hard topics; that presented potential cost savings actions could 
result in an increase in the long-term budget deficit; the absence of data regarding labor for full -time 
employees (FTE); that labor and benefits constitute 63% of the budget; the absence ofreductions, such 
as reductions in real estate activity or potentially selling real estate, in the presented potential cost savings 
actions; the absence of information in the presentation regarding a decline in investment income revenue 
due to the lack ofrevenue from excess reserves; that the projected revenue deficit can only be addressed 
by more taxpayer funding or reducing expenses; that the issue of additional taxpayer funding has been 
addressed, noting stimulus funding; that reducing expenses must be addressed, including addressing how 
to reduce labor expenses; that reducing labor expenses is the most difficult decision and that none of the 
Board Members want employees to lose their jobs or have their hours reduced on a temporary or long
term basis; that the Board Members' job is to oversee the agency's budget and that Board Members are 
not doing their job if they do not consider all options; her request for an analysis of FTE and part-time 
employees (PTE) by department with corresponding estimated dollar costs for each department to be 
provided at the next meeting; that reducing labor expenses may require eliminating currently unfilled 
and additional positions; and that BART cannot solely rely on taxpayer funding to address the situation. 

Director Allen inquired about and/or commented on the following additional subjects: that sole reliance 
on taxpayer funding without seriously discussing reductions in expenses at this time is irresponsible; that 
BART cannot continue with the wait-and-see method of projecting the financial state of the agency; the 
need for cost numbers at the next meeting and her hope for details, noting that there is not much time 
between the next meeting and the end of June to review a budget; her suggestion to reduce the COVID-
19 presentation at the next meeting and eliminate the mask discussion from the presentation; the need to 
discuss the financial health of BART moving forward ; that providing more than the information 
contained in PowerPoint presentations is necessary and that budgets cannot be worked in PowerPoint; a 
request for regular detailed, budget reports that show the actual to budget information for each 
department in past years, the current year, and budget to date; the ineffectiveness of reviewing 
PowerPoint presentations with five line items for $1 billion in costs; that detailed budget information 
regarding costs had not been provided; her appreciation for updates on COVID-19 but that COVID-19 
issues can be condensed and mask supply discussions can be quick; her desire to spend a significant 
amount of time discussing budget numbers, noting that there are cost reduction measures that were 

-7-



DRAFT 

omitted and that these measures would need to be discussed; her appreciation for staffs work; 
confirmation that consultants would be retained to assist with the budget process; and her support for 
obtaining consultants as quickly as possible. 

Director Foley expressed his hope that everyone is staying safe; thanked BART employees for keeping 
the Bay Area moving, essential workers, the MTC and its leadership for supporting BART, and Ms. 
Herhold for the revised revenue assumptions; and inquired about and/or commented on the following 
subjects: his support for Director Saltzman' s request for a low-low assumption and agreement with 
Director Allen regarding the need for more detailed cost information, noting that he is committed to 
balancing the budget and that BART should consider a two-year budget with a five-year projection if 
necessary; that employees are reporting to work every day to keep BART running and asking these 
employees to balance the budget with their pay would be disingenuous; the multi-county health order 
regarding face coverings imposed on BART; that distributing masks must be an all-or-none approach, 
noting that BART cannot offer some people masks and require others to leave the system; the need for 
a complete solution if masks are distributed and ensuring enforcement of the health order; his desire to 
avoid exposing the agency and to make good decisions regarding how to proceed; complaints regarding 
social distancing on eBART, noting that the eBART trains are limited to three cars; that with the limited 
number of cars on eBART trains combined with the 30-minute headways, riders could not practice social 
distancing on the trains; his hope that the new health order would improve social distancing on eBART; 
his appreciation for Ms. Tamar Allen' s work regarding social distancing on eBART trains and his desire 
to discuss this issue with her; and his recommendation that eBART return to 15-minute headways to 
allow for six cars in a 30-minute period and better social distancing. 

Director Dufty, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, had no report. 

Director Saltzman, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee, 
brought the matter of Transit-Oriented Development Policy Amendment - Affordable Housing Financial 
Terms before the Board. Ms. Abigail Thome-Lyman, Manager of Transit-Oriented Development, and 
Mr. Menotti presented the item. 

Ms. Williams read written comments submitted by the following individuals into the record: 

Chris Neale 
Rodney Nickens 

· Ener Chiu 

The following individuals addressed the Board via telephone: 

Gigi Gamble 
Alan Doans 
Rodney Nickens 
Haley Currier 

Director McPartland indicated that his position on this subject had not changed from the previous Board 
Meeting; expressed concern over finances related to transit-oriented development (TOD) and the ability 
to financially recover during the post-pandemic period; and indicated his appreciation for staffs work. 

-8-



DRAFT 

Director Li expressed support for the amendments to the TOD policy and moved adoption of the attached 
Transit-Oriented Development Policy, which supersedes the previously adopted Transit-Oriented 
Development Policy. (The amended Policy is attached and hereby made a part of these Minutes). 

Director Li thanked Real Estate and TOD staff for their work on Assembly Bill (AB) 2923 
implementation through the COVID-19 situation and inquired about and/or commented on the following 
subjects: that the pandemic has revealed society's inequalities and the increased importance of BART 
advancing affordable housing projects and increasing housing supply throughout the region; that BART 
should be clear about its desires and hold developers accountable to these desires, instead of assuming 
that non-profit developers are morally superior to for-profit developers by nature; that BART should 
hold itself accountable to its TOD guidelines and Board Members should exercise due diligence to ensure 
that development on BART's land meets or exceeds BART's goals; that BART needs a robust 
transportation demand management policy and program to actively increase ridership for people who 
live at BART stations and lower-income residents; that BART needs to develop methods of providing 
transit passes and ensuring that the system is economically feasible; that BART needs to ensure that the 
residents who live in affordable housing units can afford to ride BART; and her request for more 
information regarding the Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategy required by AB 2923. 

Director Dufty thanked Chair Saltzman; associated himself with Director Li; and expressed that he 
appreciated the progress and was looking forward to supporting the amended TOD policy and achieving 
the goals. 

Director Ames inquired about and/or commented on the following subjects: that survey results correlate 
with her observations regarding affordable workers being less likely to receive commuter benefits and 
less likely to have jobs near BART; encouraging jobs near BART for low and middle income workers 
and encouraging employers to offer commuter benefits to workers; her residency near affordable housing 
projects and her observation that not many people use public transit; the feedback she has received 
indicating that the low income workers have families and multiple jobs; whether more information 
regarding ridership related to affordable housing, the families that live in the affordable housing and are 
struggling, and the possibility that the families are not using public transit as expected is necessary; 
whether low-income residents are not using BART more frequently because they have multiple jobs and 
need more mobility; her concern over reducing potential parking availability for people who live in 
suburban communities, noting that she represents suburban residents; that building a housing project and 
relying on transportation demand models to encourage people to walk to transit does not address 
residents who need to drive to BART stations, but will no longer use BART because a housing 
development has replaced the BART parking lot; her opposition to removing parking spaces for housing 
because many non-transit dependent people who live in the area drive due to the spread-out nature of the 
area; her desire to retain parking availability as much as possible; the existence of state and infrastructure 
funds for affordable housing and under-utilized properties, such as warehousing sites; her hope that cities 
and counties can assist BART with the affordable housing crisis and her frustration that BART has been 
placed in the position to help provide affordable housing when cities and counties have more 
opportunities to develop affordable housing with warehouse sites; that jobs were created in San 
Francisco, down the peninsula to San Jose, and the necessary housing was not built, leading to the need 
for housing-jobs balance in communities; that BART should ask cities and counties for assistance, 
similar to BART' s request for assistance with homelessness; her request for staff to develop a policy 
enhancement to create jobs near BART, noting that this is critical to BAR T's long-term success; that the 
University of California, Los Angeles (UCLA) study results suggest that ridership is primarily 
commuter-based, that most commuters travel to San Francisco, and BART's ridership is dependent on 

-9-



DRAFT 

high-paying jobs; a policy to create off-peak/reverse commute; that locations near BART stations are 
not the best locations for affordable housing; whether a multi-county ridership survey of people who do 
not ride BART and who do ride BART could be conducted; whether staff could work with cities and 
counties to request their assistance with the affordable housing crisis, noting that this the perfect 
opportunity with the decline in the economy and decreases in valuations; and how BART could engage 
with cities and counties to obtain their assistance so that BART is not so dependent on the affordable 
housing TOD plan. 

Director Allen inquired about and/or commented on the following subjects: her agreement with Director 
Li regarding the assertion that there should be no preference between non-profit developers and for
profit developers, noting that both developers can build the developments and should be treated equally; 
her disagreement with authorizing staff to negotiate discounts upfront in the process without Board 
involvement; her observation of errors in the past and feedback she has received indicating that errors in 
TOD deals were made by people who no longer work for BART; that when staff members make mistakes 
and leave BART, the agency pays for the mistakes; that the Board should be involved in every deal and 
that every deal is different; her unwillingness to provide staff with a matrix to provide discounts; her 
advocacy for reducing expenses spent on developing parking lots into housing; that BART is a transit 
agency and its mission is to provide safe, clean, quality, reliable transit; that BART should not have 
entered the housing mission; that BART parking lots are assets and are noted as assets on the balance 
sheet; that little revenue has been generated from leased land over the pasf 20 years; that projections 
show that revenue will be generated in the future, but revenue is not currently generated; that BART has 
been engaged in TOD for a long time and that approximately a little over $1 million of TOD lease 
revenue had been generated in the prior fiscal year; a public speaker' s comment regarding providing 
additional discounts; that if BART does not wish to manage parking, then parking assets should be sold 
to cities and the cities that purchase the assets should be allowed to decide how to utilize the assets; that 
BART should not be involved in the housing business; that taxpayers purchased parking lots over fifty 
years ago and the lots were paid for long ago; that replacing one parking spot costs $70,000.00; that re
directing assets to housing and offering discounts on the fair-market value of the assets is a gift of public 
funds; and her opposition to the amended TOD policy, noting that BART is forfeiting revenue, and that 
staff would be authorized to negotiate for low-income housing which does not provide as much ridership. 

Director Foley thanked Ms. Thorne-Lyman and Mr. Menotti for providing information regarding ground 
leases and investigating the for-profit versus non-profit developer issue and commented on the following 
subjects: his concern that discounted land values have historically drained revenue, not enhanced 
revenue; that BAR T's TOD projects need to pencil-out for BART; that over the term of the proposed 
75-year ground lease, approximately one thousand surface parking lot spaces would generate around 
$650,000.00 per year or $50 million total ; that the $50 million could be used to reduce fares for youth, 
seniors, disabled, and low-income riders, or to create entry-level jobs that provide careers to members 
of the community; and that while he agrees that housing on BART property is a good idea, he cannot 
support a further financial burden on riders; that it must pencil-out for BART. 

President Simon indicated that her comments regarding this issue during the March 12, 2020 Board 
Meeting remain the same, even with new data. 

Director Raburn thanked public commenters; noted that the letters received expressed support of the 
TOD measure; and commented on the following subjects: his appreciation for Mr. Doans' comments, 
noting that Mr. Doans has led a successful effort to gain public support for increased zoning to build 240 
affordable housing units in West Oakland; his attendance at an international webinar hosted by New City 

-10-



DRAFT 

regarding cities and housing after COVID-19; Dr. Jonathan Woetzel ' s comment that the market is not 
delivering affordable housing and the opportunity today is to change the rules; that the webinar 
participants addressed the $30 billion unmet need to build affordable housing; that BART needs to work 
on changing the rules; his rescission of support for Director Foley ' s proposal to limit discounts to non
profit developers, noting that the limitation is not realistic and that all the bidders for the Lake Merritt 
Station development had a for-profit component in their bids; and that the awardee, EBALDC/Strada 
presented a solid proposal that would create 44% affordable housing on the land at Lake Merritt Station. 

Director Raburn seconded the motion brought by Director Li. 

Director Saltzman thanked public speakers and commenters that submitted letters; expressed support for 
the amended TOD policy; commented that it is more important than ever, noting the current housing 
crisis and that more people will be struggling to pay their rent and mortgage; the urgency to develop 
affordable housing, especially near transit, to provide lower housing and transportation costs; the 
importance of BART meeting its goals, noting that market rate development ceased during the prior 
recession, unless the development was already under construction, and that only the affordable projects 
moved forward; that this is the time to incentivize affordable projects so that BART is able to build 
housing of any kind on BART land; that parking lots are not greatly used, even from a financial 
standpoint; her observation that the parking lots at the El Cerrito Plaza and El Cerrito Del Norte stations 
are empty every day; and that BART needs to consider the best use of the El Cerrito parking lots in the 
next few years; that housing is a better use of the lots for the region and BART; and that she supports 
the item. 

The motion brought by Director Li and seconded Director Raburn carried by roll call vote. Ayes: 5 -
Directors Dufty, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes: 4-Allen, Ames, Foley, and McPartland. 

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Update on BART and Valley Transportation Authority Phase I 
before the Board. Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Design and Construction, and Mr. Shane 
Edwards, Chief Maintenance and Engineering Officer, presented the item. 

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board via telephone. 

Director Li thanked Aleta Dupree for monitoring BART, attending the Meeting, and providing public 
comment; expressed satisfaction with the project' s progress toward revenue service and commencement 
of pre-revenue service testing; and thanked staff for their work on the project. 

Director Dufty commented on the positive feedback from the Santa Clara Valley Transportation 
Authority (SCVT A) regarding congeniality and cooperation; thanked Mr. Edwards, Mr. Holmes, and 
staff for their work; commended Mr. Edwards and Mr. Holmes' leadership and positive morale; and 
noted that the MTC Commissioners are satisfied with the project's progress. 

Director Ames inquired about and/commented on the following subjects: clarification of the link 
between the labor bidding process for operations and the submission of the Safety Certification Report 
to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC); the situation with the Warm Springs extension 
in which bids were opened and staff was paid, but they were not working because the bid timing was not 
synchronized with CPUC certification; requested a detailed schedule of the staff bidding process and the 
required certifications at the next meeting; requested information regarding how revenue service dates 

-11-



DRAFT 

would be declared and the required certifications; and confirmation that if service begins in mid-June, 
the 21-day notice to the CPUC is tied to the labor bid close date of May 271h. 

Director Foley thanked Mr. Holmes and Mr. Edwards for their leadership; commented that 80 open 
Category A items is great new news; and noted that people who are working on this project are doing 
great work to support BART's South Bay neighbors to give them a transit alternative. 

President Simon commented that she, Vice President Foley, and Mr. Holmes attended an inaugural 
meeting on April 22, 2020 with the SCVTA's Chair and Vice Chair; noted that she and Vice President 
Foley would attend monthly meetings with the SCVTA's Chair and Vice; and indicated that she, Vice 
President Foley, and the SCVTA agreed to hold a bi-lateral conversation between the agencies' Boards 
of Directors before opening for revenue service. 

President Simon called for the General Manager's Report. Mr. Powers reported that on April 22, 2020, 
the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) announced that it will award $107 million to 
BART for the Core Capacity Program, noting that the Program will allow BART to increase the number 
of trains in the Transbay Tube from 23 trains up to 30 trains per hour; reported that External Affairs staff 
issued a press release regarding CalSTA's award; and acknowledged Ms. Poblete for her leadership and 
reported that BART would provide employees with a second round of FEMA disaster training, noting 
that the training would provide an overview of the cost recovery process and requirements for submitting 
and receiving federal assistance grants after an emergency and that about one hundred people had 
enrolled in the training. 

President Simon brought the matter of Response to Roll Call for Introductions Item No. 20-830, Creation 
of Audit Ad Hoc Committee, before the Board. 

Director Dufty thanked President Simon for calendaring the item in a way that allows the Board to move 
expeditiously and commented on the following subjects: his acknowledgement that other colleagues 
have advocated for an Audit Ad Hoc Committee or an Audit Committee, including Director Allen who 
had been advocating for such a Committee; that retaining Ms. Harriet Richardson, Inspector General, as 
BART's first Inspector General was a positive change; legislators' attention to the Inspector General 
process and ensuring that the process is vigorous and part of BART reclaiming its legacy; that Ms. 
Richardson, Ms. Poblete, and Ms. Herhold would give presentations; that the presented motion was for 
the Board to create an Audit Ad Hoc Committee; that he had spoken with Ms. Richardson, Ms. Poblete, 
and Mr. Herbold and that they are comfortable with creating the Audit Ad Hoc Committee; that there 
are options regarding the structure of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee and the areas of jurisdiction; that he, 
staff, and President Simon believe that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee members would be able to weigh 
structural and jurisdiction issues and other options and return to the Board if needed. 

Director Raburn moved that the proposed revisions to the 2020 Organization of Committees and Special 
Appointments be ratified. Director Saltzman seconded the motion. 

Ms. Richardson; Mr. Dennis Markham, Director of Performance and Audit; Ms. Poblete; Ms. Herbold; 
and Mr. Powers presented the item. 

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board via telephone. 

-12-



DRAFT 

Director Allen commented on a reference to information from The Institute oflnternal Auditors in staffs 
presentation; read an excerpt from a document authored by The Institute of Internal Auditors; and 
commented on the following subjects: that the information presented by staff was selected from a larger 
amount of information from The Institute of Internal Auditors; recommended that Board Members read 
The Institute oflnternal Auditors' Global Public Sector Insight: Independent Audit Committees in Public 
Sector Organizations; that the Controller/Treasure is a Board Appointed Officer who reports directly to 
the Board; that an audit committee would be involved in the financial audit; that under the current 
process, the Controller/Treasurer and other staff members select the current auditors, and manage the 
auditors through the audit of their own departments; that the process in which the subject of an audit 
participates in the audit and directs the auditor is troublesome; that the current audit process provides 
more justification for the Audit Committee to select auditors; that Audit Committee members who are 
Board Members are not always independent on any particular issue; and that initial meetings of the Audit 
Ad Hoc Committee should be more than monthly. 

Director Allen commented on the following additional subjects: Ms. Richardson' s recommendations 
regarding (1) appointment of an Audit Committee and (2) requiring the Audit Committee to participate 
in the evaluation of technical responses and offer a recommendation for the selection of the external 
financial auditor based on the Request for Proposal (RFP) currently out for bid; and that 
Ms. Richardson' s second recommendation is an important part of the functions in which an Audit 
Committee should participate. Director Allen referenced the memo issued by President Simon regarding 
establishment of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee and read an excerpt from the memo; commented on the 
Board's existing authority to receive and discuss audits; indicated that the better reason to establish the 
Audit Ad Hoc Committee is participation in the selection of a financial auditor; commented on the 
procedures and processes to govern an Audit Ad Hoc Committee; and noted an urgent need to add the 
participation and selection of the external auditors to the Audit Ad Hoc Committee' s jurisdiction. 

Director Allen proposed the following substitute motion: That the proposed revisions to the 2020 
Organization of Committees and Special Appointments be ratified; that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee 
meet on a monthly basis, until its procedures are set; and that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee participate 
in selecting the independent auditor which is the subject of the RFP currently out for bid. 

Director Allen commented that she is the only member of the Board who has substantial financial 
experience as a former Certified Public Accountant (CPA), Chief Financial Officer, and finance manager 
in a government agency, and that she is willing to serve as the Chair of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee, if 
President Simon decided to appoint her. 

Director McPartland seconded Director Allen' s substitute motion. 

Director Saltzman asked whether staff could immediately staff the monthly Audit Ad Hoc Committee 
meetings, noting that BART is addressing many issues, and commented on the following subjects: her 
support for the establishment of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee; her appreciation for the additional 
information regarding other transit agencies' Audit Committees; that some Audit Committee are 
comprised of Board Members instead of public members; and her disagreement with the idea that Board 
Members are not independent, noting that Board Members only depend on the voters in their districts, 
and even though Board Members have different interests and connections, they are independent. 

Staff confirmed that they are available to assist the proposed committee. 

-13-



DRAFT 

Director Dufty asked staff to address the auditor recruitment process and noted that his understanding is 
that the Board is ultimately responsible for approving these items, and asked Ms. Richardson to comment 
on when the Audit Ad Hoc Committee should be involved in the current auditor recruitment process. 

Ms. Poblete, Mr. Powers, and Ms. Richardson provided information on the RFP selection process. 

Director Allen commented that an Audit Committee is involved in the selection of the auditors at the 
technical review level; shared her experience as a pension board member; noted that the Board does not 
have the opportunity to hear the interviews as heard by the interview panel after the auditor has been 
selected and approved by the General Manager; and advocated that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee 
members participate in the technical reviews, noting that she would be willing to participate in the 
reviews if the entire Committee did not wish to participate and that she understands the topic. 

Director Raburn commented on the following subjects: his experience with good government; that the 
Audit Ad Hoc Committee is a measure that promises to provide good government in BART; that the 
proposal is for the formation of an Audit Ad Hoc Committee that will create a charter; that when he 
served as the Chair of the Alameda County Transportation Sales Tax watchdog committee, the 
Committee reviewed all finances, advised staff and elected Directors, and wrote annual reports for the 
public, but it did not select anyone; that the structure of the Alameda County Transportation Sales Tax 
watchdog committee had been embraced at BART; noting that the BART Safety, Reliability and Traffic 
Relief Program (Measure RR) watchdog committee is able to oversee all the finances of Measure RR, 
that the Committee reports to the public and the Board, and that the Committee meetings are open to the 
public; that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee could follow the structure of the Measure RR committee; that 
authorizing an ad hoc committee with the authority to select an external auditor would preempt the 
creation of an audit committee charter; that he read the independent audit committee guidelines and that 
the guidelines repeatedly use the words "review" and "advise," but not "select;" that selection is within 
the purview of the Board; that the Audit Ad Hoc Committee will create another model when developing 
a charter and that he would not stipulate how the Committee should function; and his desire to only move 
forward with the ratification of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee. 

Director Dufty asked about delaying the auditor recruitment and allowing the Audit Ad Hoc Committee 
to meet as needed, noting that all Board Members support a strong Inspector General function and that 
it would be worthwhile to establish the Audit Ad Hoc Committee and consider the selection element; 
asked for clarification of the audit deadlines and the receipt of proposals for the RFP and for confirmation 
of Ms. Richardson's suggestion to focus on the next contract and develop a process in which the Audit 
Ad Hoc Committee could possibly participate. 

Director Dufty expressed appreciation for Ms. Richardson' s input and suggested that extending the 
current auditor' s contract for one year would provide flexibility, noting that two Board Appointed 
Officers support a one-year contract extension and that the Board could more seriously consider the 
charter and the role of the Audit Ad Hoc Committee prior to the next auditor recruitment. Director Dufty 
verified Director Allen was agreeable to the approach he outlined. 

With the understanding that the auditor recruitment would be extended and that the original motion 
would be amended to include direction for the Ad Hoc Audit Committee to meet quarterly, Director 
Allen withdrew the substitute motion. She commented that auditor contracts terms are typically five 
years and that she does not wish for staff to extend a contract for five years. 

-14-



DRAFT 

The motion brought by Director Raburn and seconded by Director Saltzman carried by unanimous roll 
call vote. Ayes: 9-Directors Allen, Ames, Dufty, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. 
Noes: 0. 

President Simon thanked Directors Dufty and Allen, those who commented on the item, staff from the 
Office of the Inspector General, Ms. Herhold, Ms. Poblete, and staff who presented the item. 

President Simon called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In Memoriam 
requests. 

Director Ames expressed satisfaction with building trust and confidence through the creation of the Audit 
Ad Hoc Committee and selecting a potential auditor; and thanked staff for keeping operations safe. 

Ms. Williams relayed Director Dufty ' s request that the Meeting be adjourned in honor of Mrs. Tessie 
Henry, a longtime resident of the San Francisco Bayview neighborhood and activist who passed away 
due the COVID-19 virus. 

Director McPartland asked whether staff had responded to his RCI request. 

President Simon commented that her understanding was that Director McPartland would receive an 
update regarding car cleaning and the standards used by the District to move toward increased sanitation. 
She indicated that she had received such an update and that a memo was provided. 

Director McPartland commented that the RCI response needed to be discussed in detail and suggested 
that the RCI response discussion be postponed. 

President Simon commented on the value of ensuring that BART is doing everything possible to keep 
people safe and requested that Ms. Tamar Allen provide an update in the next COVID-19 report in 
conjunction with the RCI response memo regarding efforts and capabilities to disinfect trains. 

Director McPartland commented on the situational awareness needed to be prepared for the follow-up 
pandemic that is approaching; the consequences of acting reactively instead of proactively, including 
shutting the down the system or running trains that will accelerate the COVID-19 virus; and BART's 
ability to choose whether it will own the credit or the blame when the COVID-19 virus is controlled. 

President Simon thanked essential workers who were listening to the Meeting, staff, and Board 
Members. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 2:36 p.m. 
Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 

-15-



VISION 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 I Amended April 23, 2020 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward of a large scale public investment. 

This includes real estate assets essential to BART's transit operations, and real estate assets that can be 

used to catalyze transit-oriented development in furtherance of BART's purpose and goals. BART 
leverages these opportunities by working in partnership with the communities it serves in order to 
implement the regional land use vision and achieve local and regional economic development goals. 
Strengthening the connections between people, places, and services enhances BART's value as a regional 
resource. 

GOALS 

A. Complete Communities. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating 

places offering a mix of uses and incomes. 

B. Sustainable Communities Strategy. Lead in the delivery of the region ' s land use and transportation vision 

to achieve quality of life, economic, and greenhouse gas reduction goals. 

C. Ridership. Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations and times when the system has capacity to 

grow. 

D. Value Creation and Value Capture. Enhance the stability of BART's financial base by capturing the 

value of transit, and reinvesting in the program to maximize TOD goals. 

E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban design to encourage non-auto transportation choices 

both on and off BART property, through enhanced walkability and bikeability, and seamless transit 

connectivity . 

F. Affordability. Serve households of all income levels by linking housing affordability with access to 

opportunity. 

STRATEGIES 

A. Manage Resources Strategically to Support Transit-Oriented Development 
I. Develop a 4-Year Work Plan to assess how staff and financial activities toward TOD will be most fruitful. 

Identify BART staffing priorities and assignments to promote TOD on and around District property, including 

contributions to efforts such as planning and development, community engagement, funding and financing 

strategies. 

2. Favor long-term ground leases of no more than 66 years, rather than sale of property, as the standard disposition 

strategy for joint development projects, except in cases where alternative approaches are required to achieve 

specific development objectives (e.g., Low Income Housing Tax Credit-funded affordable housing, requiring a 

ground lease term of no less than 75 years), or where other strategies would generate greater financial return to 
the District. 

3. Solicit proposals for transit-oriented development in localities that have an adopted plan allowing for transit

supportive land uses as defined in the TOD Guidelines. Utilize a competitive selection process but ensure the 

solicitation process considers property assembly with adjacent land owners for optimal TOD. 



Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 I Amended April 23, 2020 

4. Develop a procedure that will allow BART to respond to unsolicited proposals for property development on 

BART-owned land. Although BART does not encourage unsolicited proposals, they can be a valuable means 

for BART to partner with local communities and/or the development community to produce innovative or 

unique developments that deliver benefits in excess of what is typically provided by the market. 

5. Revisit the Transit-Oriented Development Policy every IO years. 

B. Support Transit-Oriented Districts 

I. Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use policies that: a) encourage 

transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station properties, b) enhance the value of BART 

land, and c) enhance the performance of the BART system as a whole. 

2. Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and landowners, community development organizations, 

finance entities, and consider strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and off BART property. 

3. For BART system expansion, ensure that transit-oriented development and value capture opportunities are 

explicitly accounted for in major investments such as the location of new station sites, design and construction 

of station facilities, and acquisition of new properties. 

C. Increase Sustainable Transportation Choices using Best Practices in Land Use and Urban Design 

I. Utilize BART's TOD Guidelines to ensure future development and investments seamlessly connect BART 

stations with surrounding communities. 

2. Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access improvements on and around each BART station encourage net new 

BART ridership, utilizing corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches to parking replacement as appropriate. 

Following the aspirational Station Access Policy place types, use the following guidelines to replace current 

BART parking as follows when developing BART property with TOD: strive for no or limited parking 

replacement at "Urban with Parking" Stations; and use the access model to maximize revenue to BART from 

development and ridership when determining a parking replacement strategy at all station types. 

3. Utilize strategies including mixed-use development, transportation demand management, and pedestrian

friendly urban design to encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and other modes 

of non-auto transportation, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

D. Enhance Benefits of TOD through Investment in the Program 

I. Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound financial parameters and the ability to 

generate transit ridership, fare revenue, lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial 

participation, and/or cost savings. Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying or accelerating 

development opportunities. 

2. Use a variety of financing and governance mechanisms, including joint powers authorities, assessment districts, 

improvement districts, and lease credits to achieve station area TOD objectives. 

3. As appropriate, and in consideration of District-wide financial needs, reinvest revenues from the sale and lease 

of BART land into the TOD Program, informed by the priorities identified in the 4-Year Work Plan. 



E. Invest Equitably 

Transit-Oriented Development Policy 

Adopted June 9, 2016 I Amended April 23, 2020 

I. Increase scale of development at and near BART stations through catalytic investments in TOD, to help address 

the regional shortfall in meeting housing and other sustainable growth needs. 

2. Implement BAR T's adopted Affordable Housing Policy and aim for a District-wide target of 35 percent of all 

units to be affordable, with a priority to very low (<50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent 

populations. To aid in achieving BAR T's 35% affordability goal, provide up to a 60 percent discount in ground 

lease for projects with at least 35% affordable housing (30% for projects with a high rise). Establish a framework 

for varying the eligible project discount based on the depth of affordability of the deed-restricted housing units, 

the demonstrated need for discounted ground rent, and efforts to benefit BART in other ways. 

3. Pursue state, regional, and philanthropic partnerships that alleviate and prevent homelessness through 

production of affordable housing. BART's property will be offered at a greater discount if matched with 

regional-scale, external funding commitments for housing and homelessness. 

4. Ensure the 4-Year Work Plan addresses how BART will achieve its affordable housing goals. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer Distri ct Secretary BA RC 

Willi a m s 

Dept: D ist r ict Sec~y M"-""'° ~ 
Signatu re/Date: 0 ,\..9' ~ 

Consolidation of 2020 District Elections 

PURPOSE: 

To receive Board approval of a resolution requesting the Boards of 
Supervisors of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and the City and 
County of San Francisco to provide for the consolidation of the District 
election of members of the Board of Directors with the State of 
California general election to be held on November 3, 2020. The 
election districts are 1, 3, 5, 7, and 9. 

DISCUSSION: 

In order to conform to the Calif omia State Elections Code, the District 
must request the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties of Alameda, 
Contra Costa and San Francisco to consolidate the San Francisco Bay 
Area Rapid Transit District election with the State of California general 
election. The attached resolution has been drafted to accomplish this. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding in the amount of $2.75 million will be allocated in the Fiscal 
Year 2021 Operating Budget (Department 0401141 Account 606090) to 
cover both the District's share of the cost of the election and the cost of 
printing, handling, translating, and mailing the candidates' statements. 



Consolidation of2020 District Elections 

Some of the costs for the candidates' statements will be reimbursed to 
the District. The Fiscal Year 2021 Operating Budget allocation covers 
both Election Consolidation and Candidates' Statements of 
Qualifications. Board Resolution No. 4652, adopted by the Board of 
Directors on March 27, 1997, (attached) establishes rules governing 
candidates' Statements of Qualifications for District elections. 

ALTERNATIVES: None. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution requesting 
the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, 
and the City and County of San Francisco to provide for the 
consolidation of the District election with the State of California 
general election, to be held on November 3, 2020 

MOTION: Adoption of the attached resolution. 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution of the Board of Directors of 
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 

_ District Establi~g the District Rules 
Governing.Candidates' Statement of 
Qlialifications for District Elections I R~ohition No. 4652 

WHEREAS, Section 13307 of the Elections Code _of the State of California 
· proyides, among other things, that candidates for District office may prepare a candidate's 
Statement of Qualifications of up to 200 words; the Board may authorize an increase in the 
limitation on words for the statement -from 200 to 400 words; the Board may require each . . . . ...., 
candidate filing a statement to pay in advance his or her estimated pro rata share of the totalpos( 
of producing and mailing ·the candidate' s statement; · and . that, before the nomination period 
opens, the· Board shall determine whether a charge shall be levied against that candidate · for the 
candidate's statement, and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors. of the San Fran\isJ Bay 
Area Rapid Transit District to adopt rules governing candidates' Statements of Qualific-ations for 
District elections. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San 
Francisco B·ay Area Rapid Transit District, ·as follows: 

L Each candidate for the BART . Board of Directors who prepares a 
candidate's Statement of Qualifications pursuant to California Elections Code Section 13307 
shall be required to pay a total election fee of $750 at the time of filing as part of the cost to the 
District of printing, handling, translating, and mai1ing the candidate's statement, including the 
cost of foreign language translations. 

be 200 words. 
2. The limit on the length of the candidate's Statement of Qualifications shall 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is authorized to adopt 
procedures consistent with Section 13309 of the Elections Code for relieving indigent candidates 
from paying the requisite fee; and 

l of 2 

Adopted March 27, 1997 



r 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each candidate filing as a candidate for 

BART Director must comple~e the State of California Fair Political Practices Commission's 
disclosure form entitled: "Statement of Economic Interests" and.to file said form with the 
District Secretary of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit-District; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proVJ.sions of this resolution shall govern 
the 1998 election and all subsequent elections for the District's Board of Directors unless 
otherwise modified by this Board. 

Supersedes Resolution No. 4622, adopted June 27, 1996. 

fJ # . # 

2 of 2 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
requesting the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda 
County, Contra Costa County, and the City and 
County of San Francisco to provide for the 
consolidation of a District election, electing 
members of the Board of Directors, 
with the State of California general election, to 
be held on November 3, 2020 / Resolution No. ---

WHEREAS, Section 28746.6 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California 
provides: 

"A general district election for the election of directors whose terms are to expire in that year 
shall be held and conducted on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each 
even-numbered year and shall be consolidated, where possible, with the general election held on 
that date"; and 

WHEREAS, Section 28746.8 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California 
provides: 

"Except as otherwise provided in this article, candidates for the Board shall be nominated, the 
election held and conducted, and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of the 
Uniform District Election Law"; and 

WHEREAS, Section 28747.2 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California 
provides: 

"A candidate for election from any of the election districts shall be nominated and elected by the 
voters residing within the election district from which he is elected"; and 

WHEREAS, Section 28747.4 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California in 
part provides: 

"The county election official of each county within the boundaries of the district shall 
conduct the election and canvass the returns for those election districts or portions of election 
districts which are within the county of his or her jurisdiction as county election official. After 
the official canvass has been taken, the county election official shall report the returns, by 
election district number, to the board"; and 

WHEREAS, a State of California General Election will be held on Tuesday, November 3, 
2020;and 



WHEREAS, the California State Legislature has established nine election districts within 
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District as provided in Section 28745 of the Public 
Utilities Code of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10522 of the Elections Code and 28750.4 of the Public 
Utilities Code of the State of California, the District has filed with the county election official of 
each affected County a certified copy of Resolution No. 5184 of the Board of Directors of the 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District which provides a map showing the boundaries of 
the District and the boundaries of the election districts and maps of the election districts prepared 
in accordance with Article 2.4 of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division IO of the Public Utilities Code 
of the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, the territory in which said election is to be held is, to wit, all of the territory 
of said Districts Nos. 1, 3, 5, 7, and 9 lying within the County of Alameda, the County of Contra 
Costa, and the City and County of San Francisco (hereinafter called the "Counties"); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San 
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, as follows: 

Section 1. 

That the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties are hereby requested to order the 
consolidation of said district elections with said general election to be held on Tuesday, 
November 3, 2020, and to further provide that within the territory affected by said order of 
consolidation, to wit, the Counties, that except as otherwise provided in Article 2.2 of Chapter 3 
of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California, the election shall 
be held and conducted and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of said 
Uniform District Election Law. 

Section 2. 

That the Secretary of the District is hereby authorized and directed to certify to the due 
adoption of this resolution and to file copies hereof, so certified, with the Board of Supervisors 
and with the county election official of each of the counties. 

# # # 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

I\IANAGER APPROVAL: 

Originator/ Prepared by: C brislopber Gan 

Dept : Assis lanl Conlroller 

~G,'1"--
Signature/Date : -.5/<f (.J.IJ~ 

G ENER.\L MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD fNITIATED ITEM: Yes 

C ontroller/T reasurrr District Secretary BARC 

I I 

Authority to Extend the Agreement 6M2049 through Fiscal Year 2020 with Macias, 
Gini & Connell LLP for External Audit Services 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager or his designee to execute an amendment to Agreement 
6M2049 with Macias, Gini & O'Connell LLP for external audit services. The amendment 
would extend the tenn of the agreement for an additional one year. This extension is 
necessary to provide BART with the necessary required external audit services for fiscal 
year 2020. 

DISCUSSION: 

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Act (California Public Utilities Code 
Section 28769) requires that an annual audit be made of all books and accounts of the 
District by an independent ce11ified public accountant. In addition, as a recipient of federal, 
state, and local grants, the District is also required to submit annually, in addition to the 
annual audited financial statements, other financial reports such as the National Transit 
Database Report, The Single Audit Report, Transit Development Act Report, Measure B 
and BB, and other compliance reports, which are required to be audited in order to comply 
with funding agreements. 

Agreement 6M2049 was awarded to Macias, Gini & O'Connell LLP (MGO) for external 
audit services for the fiscal years 2015 through 2019. In early January 2020, request for 
proposal (RFP) covering audit services for fiscal year 2020 through fiscal year 2024 was 
initiated. Unfortunately, due to the shelter in place order instituted in early March 2020 in the 



Authority to Extend the Agreement 6M2049 through Fiscal Year 2020 with Macias, Gini & Connell LLP fo (cont.) 

San Francisco Bay Area due to COVID-19, the processing of the RFP was delayed. The 
award of the new agreement based on the time line of the cutTent RFP is projected to occur 
in July 2020. This date will be beyond the typical timeline needed for the auditors to conduct 
an interim audit, which is typically done prior to year end. An interim audit is generally 
conducted for the purpose of gaining an early understanding of any relevant events or 
significant changes that have occurred during the fiscal year subject to the audit that could 
have an impact on the District's financial statements. It is also performed to evaluate the 
District's internal control processes to assist the auditors in the planning and execution of the 
audit. These procedures allow the auditors to address any issues that could impact the 
execution of the audit that will be conducted after the end of the fiscal year. It is therefore 
recommended that the current agreement for audit services with MGO be extended for 
another year to allow sufficient time for the auditors to conduct their audit and to ensure 
compliance by the District with the required annual audit of it books for fiscal year 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Maximum compensation for the one-year extension, shown on the table below, to cover 
the audits for fiscal year 2020 was determined based on audit fees paid for fiscal year 2019, 
adjusted by increased in the consumer price index in 2019. 

Amount 
BART 
RHBT 
OtherOPEB 
CCJPA 
Total 

$ 166,813 
16,735 
16,735 
44,261 

$244,544 

Funding for the District and for the Other OPEB's audits for FY 2020 is included in the 
adopted operating budget of the Controller-Treasurer's Office. The audit fees for the RHBT 
and CCJP A will be paid by RHBT and CCJP A. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Annual audit of the District's books and records is a legal requirement and is also necessary 
to comply with reporting requirements imposed by various government agencies, which 
provides fund to the District. The annual audit of the RHBT is required under the 



Authority to Extend the Agreeme nt 6M2049 through Fiscal Year 2020 with Macias, Gin i & Conne ll LLP fo (cont.) 

Agreement and Declaration of Trust approved by the Board in 2004. The annual audit of 
CCJP A is required per Fund Transfer Agreement between CCJP A and the State of 
California, Department of Transportation. The District could decide not to extend the 
agreement with MGO for another year and move forward with the current RFP to cover 
audits for fiscal year 2020 through fiscal year 2024. However due to anticipated delay in the 
award of the new agreement, the execution of the audit for fiscal year 2020 might be 
impacted and could delay the issuances of required audited reports. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board adopts the following motion. 

MOTION: 

That the General Manager be authorized to extend Agreement No. 6M2049 to Macias, Gini 
& O'Connell LLP for another year to provide independent audit services for fiscal year 2020 
to the District, RHBT and CCJPA for a total maximum compensation of $244,544. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 8, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: FY20 Third Quarter Financial Report 

The FY20 Third Quarter Financial Report (January - March 2020) is attached. The net result for the quarter 
was $13 .9 million (M) unfavorable to budget. The third quarter change is primarily driven by the dramatic 
drop in ridership during the second half of March caused by the COYlD-19 pandemic Shelter in Place (SIP) 
orders for six counties across the Bay Area. 

Operating Sources 

Total Ridership was on budget until early March, when the first indications of COVID-19 began to affect 
transit ridership. As a result of the SIP orders, total trips for March were 58.7% under budget, driving the 
quarter 20.4% below budget. Year to date, total trips are 6.3% below budget and 7.5% below the same time 
period in FYI9. Passenger revenue for the quarter was $26.0M (21.8%) unfavorable and $24.IM (6.8%) 
unfavorable year to date. 

Financial Assistance is typically a lagging economic indicator and is not yet showing SIP impacts. Third 
quarter sales tax was favorable to budget, with year to date resu lts $3 .8M better than budget. Year to date 
State Transit Assistance (STA) was $6.SM unfavorable due to timing. Due to the economic impacts of the 
SIP orders, ST A is now expected to remain below budget through year end. Other sources of financial 
assistance, including property tax, Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits, and Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program funds are expected to be close to budget by year end, but with lower generations in FY21 . 

Operating Uses 

Total Expense for the third quarter exceeded budget by $1.SM (0.7%), with labor and benefits $4.lM over 
budget, (2.7%) unfavorable. This negative variance was driven by overtime and less than budgeted capital 
labor reimbursements. After adjusting for vacant positions, capital reimbursements are expected to be on 
budget by year end. Total non-labor expense was $2.6M under budget, largely due to a reduction in power 
from service reductions, limited Professional and Technical services spending, lower than projected bank 
card fees and increased Clipper reimbursements. Most expenses related to COVTD- 19, such as additional 
materials and cleaning, will be realized in the fourth quarter of FY20 and later. 

The outlook for the remainder of FY20 has changed dramatically since our last update. The COVID-1 9 
pandemic creates unprecedented challenges and uncertainty for BART and the region. By the end of March, 
ridership had declined to just 6% of expected levels and is expected to remain low for the foreseeable future. 
Other revenue and financial assistance are also in decline. ln response, in early March, BART management 
quickly implemented a strict freeze on hiring and overtime, accelerated capital work performed by operating 
employees, and ultimately began reducing service levels. BART will receive $251.6 million in federal 
funding which will help c lose the gap in FY20 and provide support for FY21 , with some additional federal 
funds expected in FY2 l . 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



Revenue 

• Shelter-in-place (SIP} mandated for the six Bay Area counties effective March 
17 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Avg weekday trips for the quarter were 
314,816 or 20.9% under budget and 22.1% below the same quarter last year. 
Total tr ips for the quarter were 20.4% under budget and 20.9% lower than 
FY19Q3, with weekend and holiday trips 17.1% under budget . YTD, total trips 
are 6.3% under budget and 7.5% below FY19. Net passenger revenue was 
21.8% under budget. 

• Parking revenue was $1.4M unfavorable due to reduced demand for parking, 
primarily in the daily non-reserve program. 
• Other operating revenue was $0.GM favorable mainly due to over budget 
investment income. 

Expense 

• Labor was $4.lM unfavorable in Q3, mostly due to overtime and 
unrecovered capital labor reimbursement. 
• Power was $1.7M favorable in Q3 due to reductions of electric power costs, 
commensurate reductions in transmission and distribution delivery costs, and 
rail service reductions in response to the global pandemic. 
• Other non labor was $0.9M favorable; mostly due to $2.0M timing and 
under budget spending of P& T, $0.8M Clipper fee reimbursement and $0.GM 
Interchange fees. This favorability was offset by $1.9M unfavorable material 
usage (GO Card allocat ion, elevator/escalator parts and supplies for RR 
projects that aren't chargeable to RR projects). 

Financial Assistance and Allocations 

• Sales tax for Q3 was 4.5% above FY19Q3 and $4.GM favorable . Due to SIP, 
year-end is projected to be under budget. 
• Property t ax, other assistance was $0.4M favorable due to over budget 
financial assistance. 
• State Transit Assistance (STA} was $3.4M favorable, but is expected to be 
under budget at year-end due to SIP. 
• low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) revenue was $2.GM favorable 
due to timing but will be on budget at year-end. 
•low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) Program revenue was $2.lM favorable due 
to higher than anticipat ed sale of credits and strong market prices. 
• Debt service was $0.SM favorable due to fall 2019 refunding savings. 
• Capital and other allocations were $0.8M lower than budget due to under 
budget incremental fare increase revenue and unbudgeted reverse capital 
allocations, offset by increased LCFS revenue allocations. 

Net Operating Result 

•Net operating result for Q3 was $13.9M under budget due to unfavorable rail 
passenger and parking revenue, overtime and capitalized labor reimbursement . 
YTD net operat ing result is $25.GM under budget. 

Current Quarter 

Bud et Actual Var 

119.2 93.2 -21.8% 

9.1 7.8 -15.2% 

7.3 7.9 7.6% 

135.7 108.9 

149.5 153.6 

11.4 9.7 

7.9 7.9 

33.7 32.8 

202.6 204.1 

(66.8) (95.2) -42.4%. 

71.4 76.0 6.5% 

8.3 8.8 5.0% 

9.8 13.2 34.5% 

0.0 2.6 

3.5 5.7 60.7% 

(11 .8) (11 .3) 4.2% 

23.1 ~22.3i 3.3% 

58.2 72.7 24.9% 

(8.6) (22.5) (13.9). 

67.0% 53.4% -13.6%. 

0.455 ¢ 0.590 -29.7% 

• D 

• 

Quarterly Financial Report 
Third Quarter FY20 

($ Millions) 

Revenue 
Net Passenger Revenue 

Parking Revenue 

Other Operating Revenue 

Total Net Operating Revenue 

Expense 

Net Labor 

Electric Power 

Purchased Transportation 

Other Non Labor 

Total Operating Expense 

Operating Result (Deficit) 

Taxes and Financial Assistance 

Sales Tax 

Property Tax, Other Assistance 

State Transit Assistance (STA) 

Low Carbon Transit Op Prog 

Low Carbon Fuel Std Prog 

Debt Service 

Capital and Other Allocations 

Net Financial Assistance 

Net Operating Result 

System Operating Ratio 

Rail Cost I Passen er Mile 

Year to Date 

Bud9et Actual 

356.1 332.0 

27.2 25.9 

21 .7 24.4 

405.0 382.3 

444.3 465.5 

34.2 31 .1 

23.7 23.6 

94.4 88.0 

596.6 608.2 

(191.6) (226.0) 

213.3 217.1 

38.7 39.2 

19.7 13.2 

8.4 8.4 

10.6 17.5 

(35.4) (34.6) 

~64.7~ \61 .5~ 

190.5 199.4 

(1.0) (26.6) 

67.9% 62.8% 

0.435 0.480 
• Totals may not add due to rounding to the nearest million. 

No Problem 

Caution: Potential Problem/Problem Being Addressed 

Significant Problem 

Var 

-6.8% 

-4.8% 

12.2% 

-5.6% 

-4.8% 

9.1% 

-2.0% 

-18.0% 

65.3% 

4.6% 

-10.3% 



12.0 

11.0 

10.0 

9.0 

VI 8.0 
C 

~ 7.0 

~ 
6.0 

5.0 

4 .0 

3.0 

Exits 

Weekday 
Saturday 
Sunday 
Total 

Exits 

Weekday 
Saturday 
Sunday 
Total 

Jul 

Monthly Ridership 

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan 

- FV20 Actuals - - - FV20 Budget 

Actual 

FY19 Q3 

404,136 
151,623 
102,142 

28,367,679 

Actual 

FY19 YTD 

409,869 
160,224 
115,027 

87,825,441 

Budget 

FY20 Q3 

397,895 
151,361 

90,294 
28,177,528 

Budget 

FY20YTD 

404,777 
153,869 
102,595 

86,692,805 

Actual 

FY20 Q3 

314,816 
118,541 

74,712 
22,425,412 

Actual 

FY20 YTD 

376,902 
146,022 

99,762 
81,261,959 

Feb 

FY20 Q3 Ridership Stats 

FY20 YTD Ridership Budget to Actual Variance 
{budget= O} 

1,000,000 
-0.2% 0.7% 0.6% 0.8% 0.5% 0.5% 

0 

-1,000,000 
-1.5% 0.5% 

-2,000,000 

-3,000,000 

-4,000,000 

-5,000,000 

Mar Apr May Jun 
-6,000,000 

-6.3% --7,000,000 
FV19 Actuals Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

FY20 YTD Actual vs. Rolling 12 Month Clipper Adoption Rate 

FY19 Q3 FY20 Q3 

-22.1% -20 .9% 
-21.8% -21.7% 
-26.9% -17.3% 
-20.9% -20.4% 

FY20 YTD Actual vs. 

FY19 YTD FY20 YTD 

-8.0% -6.9% 
-8 .9% -5.1% 

-13.3% -2.8% 
-7.5% -6.3% 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 8, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: COVID-19 Agenda Item: Update on BART's COVID-19 Efforts and Impacts 

At the Board of Directors meeting on May 14, 2020, BART's COVID-19 efforts and its impacts 
to the District will be presented for information. 

If you have any questions, please contact Michael Jones at (510) 464-6126. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

rt Powers 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 8, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Administration Agenda: FY21 Budget Overview 

At the May 14, 2020 BART Board of Director' s meeting, the FY21 Budget Overview will be 
presented for information. 

If you have any questions about this presentation, please contact Pamela Herhold, Assistant 
General Manager, Performance & Budget, at Pherhol@bart.gov, or (510) 464-6168 . 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

Originator/Prepared by: Mohamad 

Fararjeh 

D, p, M,;,,.,.,~;,;;•1Up 
ignatur a e: 0 0 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Authorization to Award of Contract 20LZ-130 Train Control Room 
Battery Systems Replacement, Phase 3 to Icenogle Construction 
Management, Inc. 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controll er/Treas urer District Secretary 

To Obtain Authorization to Award of Contract 20LZ-130 Train Control Room 
Battery Systems Replacement, Phase 3 

I 'L -f ~ 
"' t 

PURPOSE: 
--

• 
1.-

_... I .,. -. 

t . , .. • 

To obtain Board Authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 
20LZ-130 for the Train Control Room Battery Systems Replacement, Phase 3, 
to Icenogle Construction Management, Inc. of San Francisco, CA for the Bid 
amount of $5,493,180.00. 

DISCUSSION: 

The District's train control room battery systems provide emergency power to 
train control and communications systems essential for reliable revenue 
service. The batteries are used to store energy as a part of an uninterruptible 
power supply (UPS) to provide power to essential loads when the utility 
power is not available. The batteries are beyond their designed life and cannot 
hold a charge for a significant length of time. A utility power disruption could 
result in a loss of train control computer operations. 

,. -,. -.. .!. , ,-: . ·-' - ' 

•. 

• 

. ..... 
, 



To Obtain Authorization to Award of Contract 20LZ- I 30 Train Control Room Battery Systems Replacement ( cont.) 

This Contract is for the upgrade of existing Train Control Room Battery 
Systems in twenty (20) locations throughout the system. This is the third and 
final phase of the train control battery system replacements systemwide. The 
Contract requires an all-new battery system consisting of batteries, battery 
racks, remote monitoring systems, hydrogen sensor alarm, cabinets, disconnect 
switches, and associated accessories . This includes the replacement of 
associated conduits and conductors as well as the removal and disposal of the 
existing battery systems. 

The District provided advance notice to two hundred seventy-four (274) 
prospective Bidders, and plans were sent to four (4) Plan Rooms. A pre-Bid 
meeting was held on December 10, 2019, with eight (8) prospective Bidders in 
attendance. A site visit was conducted on December 23 , 2019, with three (3) 
Contractors in attendance. Bids were opened on January 21, 2020. A total of 
three (3) Bids were received as follows: 

Bidder 

Becker Electric, Inc. 

San Francisco, CA 

Icenogle Construction Management, Inc. 

San Francisco, CA 

Blocka Construction, Inc. 

Fremont, CA 

$4,723, 680.69 

$5,493,180.00 

$6,657,000.00 



To Obtain Authorization to Award of Contract 20LZ-130 Train Control Room Battery Systems Replacement (cont.) 

Engineer's Estimate $5,065,821.00 

At the Board meeting of March 12, 2020, the Board authorized the General 
Manager to award Contract No. 20LZ-130 for the Train Control Room Battery 
Systems Replacement, Phase 3, ("20LZ-130"), to Becker Electric, Inc., 
("Becker Electric"). In accordance with Board Rule 3-5.3, notification of the 
Board's action was transmitted to all Bidders on March 12, 2020. 

On March 16, 2020, and March 18, 2020, the District received timely protests 
against the award to Becker Electric, Inc from Icenogle Construction 
Management, Inc. ("Icenogle") and Blocka Construction Inc. ("Blocka"). 
After further review Staff issued two Protest decisions sustaining portions of 
the Protests and rescinding the recommended award to the apparent low 
bidder, Becker Electric, Inc. Staff further determined that the second low 
bidder, Icenogle Construction Management, Inc has submitted a responsive 
bid. Staff has also determined that the total Bid Amount of $5,493,180.00 is 
fair and reasonable and approximately 8% above the Engineer's Estimate. 

This Contract was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise ("DBE") Program requirements. The Office of Civil 
Rights reviewed the scope of work for this Contract and determined that there 
were DBE subcontracting opportunities; therefore, a DBE participation goal of 
12% was set for this Contract. The apparent responsive second low Bidder, 
Icenogle Construction Management, Inc. is a DBE certified firm and will 
perform 30% of the work and committed to subcontracting .4% to DBEs. The 
Office of Civil Rights has determined that Icenogle Construction Management, 
Inc. committed to a total of 30.4% DBE participation, which exceeds the DBE 
participation goal set for this Contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 



To Obtain Authorization to A ward of Contract 20LZ-130 Train Control Room Battery Systems Replacement ( cont.) 

Funding in the amount of $5,493,180.00 for Contract No. for 20LZ-130, Train 
Control Room Battery Systems Replacement, Phase 3 is included in the total 
project budget for 20LZ100, Train Control Room Battery Systems 
Replacement. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is 
included to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to 
meet this request will be expended from the following: 

Proposed Funding 
FIG 3015,353K,353M - FTA Award Sources 3,431 ,674 
FIG 6017 - MTC Bridge Toll Sources 25,466 
FIG 8530, 8531 , 8532-FY16, 17 & 18 Operating to Cap 6,119,090 
Alloc 

TOTAL 9,576,230 

As of April 8, 2020, $9,576,230 is the total budget for this project. BART has 
expended $3,552,812, committed $62,626, and reserved $0 to date. This 
action will commit $5,493 ,180, leaving an available fund balance of$467,612 
in these fund sources for this project. 

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available 
to meet this obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed 
District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 



To Obtain Authorization to Award of Contract 20LZ-l30 Train Control Room Battery Systems Replacement (cont.) 

The alternative is not to replace the train control room battery systems at this 
time. This would leave the BART Train Control System vulnerable to power 
failures and possible shutdowns impacting revenue service. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 20LZ-130 for Train 
Control Room Battery Replacement to Icenogle Construction Management, 
Inc. for an amount of $5,493,180.00, pursuant to a notification to be issued by 
the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District' s Protest 
Procedure and FT A's requirements related to protests. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Controller/Treas urer District Secretary 

Award Agreements No. 6M8168 and 6M8169 for Design Support During 
Construction Services in support ofBART's Train Control Modernization Program 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6M8168 to 
Parson's Transportation Group, Inc. and Agreement No. 6M8169 SYSTRA Consulting, Inc. 
to provide Design Support During Construction Services (DSDC) in support ofBART's 
Communications Based Train Control Contract. 
DISCUSSION: 

On January 9, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to award Contract No. 
49GH- l l O to Hitachi Rail STS USA, Inc. for the Design-Build of a Communications Based 
Train Control System (CBTC Contract). 

In order to provide technical design, engineering, project management and implementation 
oversight support to the Design-Build CBTC Contract with dedicated project staff over a 
ten-year period, BART issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 6M8168, for Design 
Support During Construction Services on October 8,2019. The RFP indicated that the 
services would be obtained through agreements with up to two firms, that each agreement 
would have a term of up to ten years, and that each would be in an amount not to exceed 
$45,000,000. 

An Advance Notice to Proposers was emailed to 358 design support during construction 
services consultant firms having expertise in the pertinent technical fields. The RFP was 
posted to the District's procurement Portal and was made available to proposers to 
download electronically. The RFP was also advertised in local publications. A total of 102 
firms downloaded the RFP through the Procurement Portal. 



Award Agreements No. 6M8168 and 6M8169 for Design Support During Construciton Services 

A pre-proposal meeting was held on October 29, 2019 at the BART Offices in Oakland. 
Forty-eight (48) firms signed in at the meeting. Immediately following the pre-proposal 
meeting, a networking session for potential subconsultants to meet potential prime 
consultants was led by the District's Office of Civil Rights. In an effort to maximize the 
participation of small businesses, all potential subconsultants were afforded the opportunity 
to discuss individual subcontracting opportunities with potential prime proposers at this 
sess10n. 

On February 25, 2020, timely proposals were received from the following five firms (listed in 
alphabetical order): 

1. ABA Global Inc. of San Francisco, CA 

2. Mott MacDonald Group, Inc. San Ramon, CA 

3. Parsons Transportation Group Inc. Oakland, CA 

4. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc. San Francisco, CA 

5. SYSTRA Consulting Inc. San Francisco, CA 

The proposals were reviewed by a Selection Committee ("Committee") consisting of BART 
staff from the Planning and Development, Maintenance and Engineering, Transportation, 
Office of Civil Rights; and Contract Administration Department. Proposals were reviewed to 
determine if the proposals were responsive to the requirements of the RFP. Thereafter, the 
proposals were evaluated and scored on the basis of the criteria contained in the RFP with 
respect to the qualifications of the firm and key personnel. Four of the five proposals were 
short-listed for oral presentations. The committee conducted oral interviews on April 23, 
2020. 

Based on the oral and written evaluations, the Committee determined that the two most 
qualified firms are Parson's Transportation Group, Inc. and SYSTRA Consulting, Inc. After 
making this determination, BART began negotiations with these firms. With support from the 
Planning and Internal Audit Departments, Contract Administration staff, the Direct and 
Indirect Cost Supporting data for both Parson's and SYSTRA is now with BART Internal 
Audit. Staff has determined that both firms are responsible organizations. Negotiations 
between BART and the firms concluded on mutually favorable terms. 

This Agreement was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantage Business Enterprise 
("DBE") Program requirements. The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of work for 
this Agreement and determined that there were Small Business Entity (SBE) sub-consulting 
opportunities; therefore, an SBE participation goal of 30% was set for this 
Agreement. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc. and SYSTRA Consulting Inc., committed 



Award Agreements No. 6M8168 and 6M8 I 69 for Design Support During Construciton Services 

to meeting the 30% SBE participation goal. The Office of Civil Rights will monitor the 
actual SBE participation attained based on individual work plans issued and amounts actually 
paid to SBE firms. The Agreements require the Consultants to ensure that SBE firms have an 
equal opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of the Agreements. 

Accordingly, staff recommends the following two awards under RFP No. 6M8 l 68, each in 
an amount not to exceed $45,000,000 for a ten-year performance period: 

1. Parson's Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 

2. SYSTRA Consulting, Inc., San Francisco, CA 

Work Plans (WPs) under the Agreements will define individual assignments in each case 
subject to funding availability. Each WP will have its own scope, schedule and budget. 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve each Agreement as to form. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Each of the Agreements has a not-to-exceed limit of $45,000,000. These agreements have a 
total combined limit not to exceed $90,000,000. The District will issue a series of Work 
Plans (WPs) to encumber costs associated with these agreements. Each WP will have a 
defined scope of services, and a separate schedule and budget. Any WP assigned for 
funding under a State or Federal grant will include State or Federal requirements. Capital 
Budget and Funds Management will certify the eligibility of identified capital funding sources 
and the Controller/Treasurer will certify availability of such funding prior to incurring project 
costs against these Agreements, and the execution of each WP. Funds will come from a 
combination of Federal, TIRCP, Measure RR and BART Capital funds . 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject all proposals and re-solicit new proposals. The amount of time necessary to reissue 
the RFP would adversely impact activities undetway in support of the District's 
Communications Based Train Control System and would not likely result in higher quality 
proposals. 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 
MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M8168 to Parsons 
Transportation Group Inc. and Agreement No. 6M8 I 69 to SYSTRA Consulting Inc. to 
provide Design Support During Construction Services in support of BART's 
Communications Based Train Control Contract, in an amount not to exceed $45,000,000 for 
each agreement, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to 
the District's protest procedures and FTA's requirements related to protests. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

by: Catalina Espi no 

Dept: Maintenance and Engineering 

ukl~k--
Signature/Date: 

'-1 lz '6 lz 020 

! Status: Routed 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Not1 fy the Board as recommended herein. 

BOARD lNITIA TED ITEM: No 

[ l 

i Date Created: 3/23/2020 

Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 33 to Contract No. 
09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 33 to Contract No. 09AF
l l 1A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement Project, in the amount of$1,200,000.00 for 
Door Replacement Re-Sequencing and to compensate the Contractor for District caused 
delays. 

DISCUSSION: 

On June 14, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to award Contract 
No. 09AF-l 11A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement Project, to DMZ Builders of 
Concord, CA, for $6,388,000. The work of this Contract is to provide all labor, equipment, 
materials and services necessary to remove and replace one hundred eighteen ( 118) cross 
passage doors in the Transbay Tube (TBT) and the associated transition structures at each 
end and to furnish two (2) cross passage doors and hardware for installation by others. The 
Contract also includes two Options for the retrofit and improvement of the cross-passage 
doors' remote monitoring system from Central Control. Option A requires the Contractor to 
provide all labor, material and equipment for this work, while Option B requires the 
Contractor to only deliver the material and equipment to the District for installation by 
others. The District has exercised Option A. 



Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 33 to Contract No. 09AF-I I IA, TBT Cross Pa (cont.) 

Change Order No.33 for $1 ,200,000.00 is required to compensate the Contractor for District 
caused delays. The construction timeline and work area of multiple Contracts coincided in 
the narrow and confined spaces of the TBT. DMZ and the BART construction management 
team have made diligent efforts to mitigate accessibility conflicts in the work area with, 
among others, the TBT Seismic Retrofit construction management team and its Contractor. 
The District created a number of daily access limitations for DMZ which resulted in sporadic 
and unplanned direct work stoppages causing delays to DMZ's work. 

The forecast amount of the Change Order No. 33 is $1,200,000.00: 

Total Base Bid Amount: $6,388,000 
Other Contingency: $626,024 
Change Order No. 33: $1,200,000 
Revised Contract Amount: $1,826,024 

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000 
require Board approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior 
to execution for compliance with procurement guidelines. The Office of General Counsel 
will approve the Change Order as form prior to execution. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The total amount of$1 ,200,000 for Change Order No.33 is included in the total project 
budget for 09AF002, TBT CROSS PASSAGE DOOR REPLACEMENT. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced Project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Proposed Funding 
802A - 2017 A Measure RR GOB # 1 $6,883,110 
802B - 2019B Measure RR GOB #2 $5,560,106 
TOTAL $ 12,443,216 

As of March 18, 2020, $12,443,216 is the total budget for this Project. BART has expended 
$9,343,747 committed $828,452 and reserved $212,871 to date. This action will commit 
$1 ,200,000 leaving an available fund balance of $858,146 in these fund sources for this 
Project. 



Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 33 to Contract No. 09AF-I I 1 A, TBT Cross Pa (cont.) 

The Office of Controller/f reasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on un-programmed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

The Board may elect not to authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No.33 
Door Replacement Re-Sequencing. Failure to issue this Change Order will likely lead to 
claims from DMZ, and increasing the final cost to the District. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommend that the Board approve the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No.33 Door Replacement Re
Sequencing for Contract No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement Project, 
in the amount of $1 ,200,000.00. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: May 8, 2020 

FROM: Bob Powers, General Manager 

SUBJECT: West Oakland Transit-Oriented Development Update 

At the May 14, 2020 BART Board meeting, staff will provide an information item on the Transit
Oriented Development project at the West Oakland BART Station. The presentation will include 
development progress to date, summary of entitlements, proposed station access improvements, 
and potential Board actions. Staff anticipates coming back to the Board in the next few months 
for action on the development. 

If you have any questions about this presentation, please contact Val Menotti, Chief Planning & 
Development Officer, at VMenott@bart.gov. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DA TE: May 8, 2020 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: PPAAL Agenda: BART-VTA Phase 1 Extension- For Information 

At the Board of Directors meeting on May 14, 2020, the Silicon Valley BART Extension (SVBX) 
Phase I, will be presented for information. 

If you have any questions, please contact Carl Holmes at (510) 464-7592. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

litobert M. Powers 

~ 





Board of Directors Meeting
May 14, 2020







1


Agenda


 Front Line and Public Safety Updates


 Ridership Update


 Advocacy Update


 Employee & Labor Partner Engagement







Front Line and Public Safety Efforts







3


County Health Office Orders - April 29, 2020
 Health Officers from five Bay Area Counties issued updated Shelter in


Place of Residence Orders on April 29, 2020


 New orders allow for construction projects to resume with new Large
Construction Project Safety Protocols (“LCP Protocol”):


• Requires assignment of a COVID-19 Safety Compliance Officer (SCO) to the jobsite
• Ensure implementation of all recommended safety and sanitation requirements regarding the 


COVID-19 virus at the jobsite.


• Compile daily written verification that each jobsite is compliant with the components of this LCP 
Protocol. Each written verification form must be copied, stored, and made immediately available 
upon request by any County official.


• Establish a daily screening protocol for arriving staff, to ensure that potentially infected staff do 
not enter the construction site. If workers leave the jobsite and return the same day, establish a 
cleaning and decontamination protocol prior to entry and exit of the jobsite. Post the daily 
screening protocol at all entrances and exit to the jobsite.


• Requires a COVID-19 Third-Party Jobsite Safety Accountability Supervisor (JSAS)
• Verify compliance of the LCP
• Must perform visual inspection and random interviews with workers







4


Implementation for BART Maintenance Projects
 Establish Daily Screening Protocol


• All employees are instructed they should not work with any symptoms


• Employee In Charge (EIC) conducts a "COVID-19" specific portion of the 
pre-work safety briefing and reminds employee to stay home if 
experiencing any COVID-19 symptoms


• Employee In Charge (EIC) will notify supervisor of anyone who may exhibit 
symptoms







5


Requirements For Face Coverings Continue


 All members of the public, except where specifically exempted, must 
wear a face covering outside their place of residence:
• When waiting for, or riding on, public transportation (including without limitation 


any bus, BART or CalTrain) or paratransit or are in a taxi, private car service, or 
ride-sharing vehicles


 BART Employees must wear face coverings when in any:
• BART Facility (stations, shops, office buildings...)
• BART Parking Lots when others are present
• Any Train (in or out of service)
• District Vehicle when others are present


 BART will continue to require masks for employees, contractors and 
customers







6


Masks On Order


 Three-month supply on hand


 Three to four-month supply on order


Description Current Inventory 
on Hand (EA)


Current Total 
Pending Ordered 


(EA)
N95 Mask 74,520 41,170


KN95 Mask 58,800 86,600


Poly Surgical Mask 113,500 114,350


Cloth Masks 27,885 50,000


Employee Made & 
Donated


65







7


Critical Personnel Availability - Operations
4/13/2020 4/20/2020 5/4/2020 5/11/2020


Critical Position - Operations Availability Availability Availability Availability


Train Operator 89% 92% 89% 88%


Station Agent 87% 89% 84% 81%


Operations Foreworker 92% 95% 93% 93%


Train Controller 87% 100% 77% 93%


Power Support Controller 80% 77% 100% 100%


Elevator Escalator Maintenance 79% 72% 88% 83%


System Service Workers 87% 84% 88% 88%


Traction Power Maintenance 86% 76% 79% 85%


Train Control Maintenance 86% 88% 90% 88%


Track & Structures Maintenance 95% 94% 94% 96%


Automatic Fare Collection Maintenance 87% 89% 87% 87%


Transit Vehicle Mechanic 66% 53% 88% 89%


Transit Vehicle Electronic Technician 74% 55% 84% 84%


Utility Worker/ Car Cleaner 50% 63% 80% 83%


RS&S Foreworker 43% 56% 84% 95%


Electronic Repair Shop Technician 49% 65% 100% 100%


eBART Vehicle Mechanics 75% 75% 83% 83%


eBART Track & Civil 50% 83% 50% 83%


eBART DMU Engineers 84% 90% 89% 90%


eBART Custodians 74% 60% 79% 70%







8


Critical Personnel Availability - Police


Critical Position - Police 4/13/2020
Availability


4/20/2020
Availability


5/4/2020
Availability


5/11/2020
Availability


Lieutenants 92% 92% 100% 100%


Sergeants 83% 93% 93.1% 86.2%


Civilian Supervisors 80% 100% 100% 100%


Police Officers 90% 91% 91% 90.9%


Community Service Officers 69% 74% 80% 80%


Fare Inspectors 56% 59% 62.7% 64.7%


Dispatchers 90% 90% 94.7% 89.5%


Police Admin Specialist 100% 100% 100% 100%







9


BART Police Department Citations Update
Proof of Payment Criminal


March 2 – March 8 168 112


March 9 – March 15 78 106


March 16 – March 22 37 64


March 23 – March 29 2 29


March 30 – April 5 4 39


April 6 – April 12 1 41


April 13 – April 19 0 26


April 20-April 26 14 56


April 27 – May 3 4 42


May 4 – May 10 1 41







Ridership Update







11


Ridership Update







12


Ridership Increasing: Wed. May 6 – Tues. May 12 
compared to two weeks prior







13


Ridership U
pdate


i.....i. ~ N 
U"'l O U"'l 0 


b888 


• • 
CD ~ OJ . . · 
V"I ro 
ro ro 


7'" 
:::J \.C ro -'"tJ 
""""'Ii 
ro 


I n 
0 
< -c:, -


Civic Calter / UN Plaza 


Montgomery Str02t 


F'owel I Street 


E mb arcadcro 


ruitvale 


16th Street Mission 


24th Street Mission 


El Cerrito Del Norte 


0 8 0 0 0 


B.lboaPark _ _ 


Co li seum -


12th Street Oak I an d -


San Leandro -


MacArthur -


Richmond -


Daly Cit-y -


Be11Fair -
We~ Oakland - -


19th Street Oak I an d 


Down tO<'I n Berk elcy 


Hayward -


Glenl'ark -


Concord -


Lake M err ilt -


F'imburg / Be11po in t -


Dublin/ Pleasanton -
Antioch • 


South H e11ward • 


San Francisco lnt 'I Airport -


Fremont -


Ashby -
Pleasant Hill/ Contra Costa Centre --


Union Cit-y -


W.lnut Creek -


EI Cerrito F'I aza -


Co lm a -
San Bruno • 


South San Francisco • 


Millbrae -
Pittsburg Center I 


Castro Valley • 


Warm Springs/ South Fremont -


Rockridge -


North Berkeley -


North Concord/Mart in e! • 


We~ Dublin/ F'leasanton • 


Lafav ctte • 


Orinda . 


O akl and Airport I 


NWW.j:::,,.j:::,,U-, 
U"'l O U"'l O U"'l 0 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 


8 8 8 8 8 8 
0 0 0 0 0 0 


)> 
< ro 
cJ 


O'Q 
ro 
~ ro 
ro 
7'" 
\.C -+:=a, 


......... 
J\.J 
-...J -m 
X 
;::.i: 
V"I 


C'" 
< 
~ 
OJ .-.. -· 0 
:::J 







14


Reimagining the Rider Experience


 Looking at re-opening efforts of transit systems across the world
 Currently producing bold decals and posters for inside stations and on-


board trains to communicate safety measures and procedures
 Preparing for increased communication efforts with the public and 


all stakeholders on what to expect from BART service and the new rider 
experience as region reopens







15


Reimagining the Rider Experience


 BART will survey riders via email on their needs and commuting plans
 The Bay Area Council included two questions from BART in their latest 


survey asking employers:
• What percentage of staff that is currently working remotely because of shelter in 


place order would they anticipate having back in the office during each stage of 
recovery.


• How likely would you be to allow more flexible shift start and end time to facilitate 
social distancing on transit.







16


Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce
Objectives


• To make proactive efforts to ensure employee and customers 
safety


• To provide clear messaging and good rider experience


• To be strategic in bringing back telecommuting employees


• To align with other agencies to ensure operational 
consistencies


• To partner collaboratively with Bay Area businesses to bring 
back our workforces and invigorate the economy


• To be a part of the solution







17


BART Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce


AN INTERNAL TASK FORCE TO FOCUS ON BART’S PLAN TO REBUILD RIDERSHIP IN THE NEAR, MEDIUM, AND LONG-TERM. 


PUBLIC HEALTH PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS PARTNERSHIPS


Update as necessary to align with guidelines from State, Counties, and Cities


• Policies around masks and 
PPE


• Other potential health 
measures (e.g.: temperature 
checks)


• Social distance policies in 
stations and trains


• Creating a “touchless” 
environment


• Enforcement of masks 
and other public health 
initiatives


• Staffing implications and 
tradeoffs for increased 
coverage due to public 
health enforcements 


EXTERNAL
• Social media campaigns
• Ideas from other agencies
• Current rider experience 


and strategies to improve 
rider experience (e.g.: 
incentives for riding and 
parking


INTERNAL
• New normal
• District-wide staffing needs 


and considerations
• LKS re-entry plan


PARTNER AGENCIES
• Identify and act on 


opportunities to collaborate 
(e.g.: schedules, safety 
measures, public health 
procedures)


BUSINESS COMMUNITY
• Understand business’ re-


entry plans
• Potential opportunity to 


align with businesses for 
staggered starts


SERVICE


• Service plans with varying 
levels


• Number of trains
• Station and train cleaning 


procedures
• Operator Continuity







18


 ATU 
 AFSCME
 BART Police
 BPOA & BPMA
 Communications
 General Manager's Office
 Human Resources / Labor 


Relations


 Operations
 Safety 
 SEIU Professional
 SEIU BART Chapter
 Planning and Development
 OCIO
 Office of Civil Rights


Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce Participants







Advocacy Update







20


Federal Advocacy Update


 BART was asked to join a national press conference on May 12 with the 
nation's largest transit agencies and labor leaders organized by MTA to urge 
congress to include at least $33 billion for transit in the CARES 2.0 relief 
package. BART was the only agency outside of the East Coast asked to join.







21


Federal Advocacy Update
 APTA requesting $23.8 billion in additional emergency funding from 


Congress and Administration.


 BART joined transit systems from across the country and sent a letter 
to Congressional leaders on May 6th requesting urgent assistance in 
providing aid to public transportation agencies in the next COVID-19 
relief bill.







22


Federal Advocacy Update


 House Democrats Release New Relief Bill
• Health and Economic Recovery Omnibus Emergency Solutions (HEROES) Act 
• $3 trillion in coronavirus aid 
• Includes $15.75 billion in transit emergency relief for operating assistance 


grants 
• $11.75 billion will be distributed by formula 
• $4 billion will be available to any grantee or subrecipient by application to the Dept. 


of Transportation Secretary 
• A vote on package is expected in the House this Friday, but action is expected to only 


clarify the House’s starting position for negotiations with the Senate and the White 
House. 







23


Regional Advocacy Update


 MTC regional advocacy efforts focused on:
• $3.4 billion revenue backstop for Bay Area Highway and Transit to provide 18-


months of funding replacement


• A supplemental large-scale transportation investment within FAST 
Act reauthorization to support long-term economic recovery


 BART has also been asked to participate on MTC’s Blue Ribbon 
Transit Recovery Task Force that will:
• Discuss strategies to restore ridership and stabilize transit systems
• Review agencies’ recovery plans
• Create a set of recommendations before the MTC allocates the balance of CARES Act 


funding







Employee & Labor Partner Engagement







25


Employee & Labor Partner Engagement
Families First Coronavirus Relief Act - Emergency Paid Leaves
 Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) & Emergency Family Leave


• Two weeks maximum for various reasons (symptoms, childcare, care of 
another)


• Additional 10 weeks for childcare
• More than 750 applications received, nearly 700 approved to date, over 150 


exhausted
• 60% of those for childcare


Testing
 One onsite employee (non-public facing, working in right-of-way) 


COVID-19 positive, but recovering


• 13 contacts identified and tested, all 13 negative


 Over 60 employees total utilized hotline









		Board of Directors Meeting

		Agenda

		Front Line and Public Safety Efforts

		County Health Office Orders - April 29, 2020

		Implementation for BART Maintenance Projects

		Requirements For Face Coverings Continue

		Masks On Order

		Critical Personnel Availability  - Operations

		Critical Personnel Availability  - Police

		BART Police Department Citations Update

		Ridership Update

		Ridership Update

		Ridership Increasing: Wed. May 6 – Tues. May 12 compared to two weeks prior

		Ridership Update 

		Reimagining the Rider Experience

		Reimagining the Rider Experience

		Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce

		BART Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce

		Rebuilding Ridership Taskforce Participants

		Advocacy Update

		Federal Advocacy Update

		Federal Advocacy Update

		Federal Advocacy Update

		Regional Advocacy Update

		Employee & Labor Partner Engagement

		Employee & Labor Partner Engagement

		Slide Number 27






FY21 Budget Outlook
May 14, 2020







1


General Manager introduction
We have experienced the deepest and most rapid decline of ridership in BART history – prior to the pandemic, 
we had an average of about 400,000 weekday riders, but over the last six weeks we have averaged about 26,700 
weekday riders – meaning a ~95% decrease in ridership


The return of ridership is likely to follow the Governor’s Office “Four Stages” and County Health guidance.  
County Health Officers guidance supersedes and is likely to be more restrictive than Governor’s guidance


We are not sure if our ridership will return to pre-COVID levels and cannot be certain how it might ramp up. 
We have expanded our budget model to include epidemiological and economic factors. We have developed two 
scenarios which include a decline in ridership that is between 5x and 15x more significant than our ridership 
decline during the Great Recession1.  We are continually updating our scenarios by surveying employers and 
riders to understand what will drive their return to work and the way they choose to get there 


BART can be an enabler of economic recovery in the Bay Area by delivering safe and reliable service. Before 
COVID, 70% of our riders were commuters (including essential workers).  We are exploring a range of COVID-19 
related operating measures to keep our workforce and riders as safe as possible as the economy reopens


We are in regular communication with peer agencies to jointly problem solve how to navigate this 
unprecedented situation. We are sharing COVID-19 operating procedures, discussing how to best solve 
financial pressures, and sharing measures to increase passenger confidence in returning to transit


Our FY21 budget is under pressure because of the precipitous decline in fare revenue and additional COVID-
19-related costs  - it needs to be evaluated more frequently across a wider set of outcomes, given the 
uncertainty around the effectiveness of public health outcomes, the speed of economic recovery, and how 
quickly and to what extent our ridership will return to the system


1 BART experienced a 5% decline in ridership in FY10







2


Budget summary
Uncertainty in both revenue and demand for service
• Wide range of possible outcomes - average FY21 ridership could range from 15% to 50% of pre-COVID 


and may not recover to 100% until FY23 or later
• Reductions in service could reduce spend by 10%, but could force 35% of riders off the system to 


support physical distancing
• BART’s FY21 plan must be flexible:


• Enhance service to support recovery / meet health standards
• Maintain fiscal stability even if revenue recovery is slow


Sharply lower revenue
• Forecast revenue loss of up to $600M: FY20 (up to $180M) + FY21 (up to $420M)


• CARES Act will offset only part of this loss 
• Public health guidance may limit per-car capacity for an extended period
• Impacts to fare revenue will last beyond FY21


Increased demands on resources
• PPE, disinfecting, and other operational strategies needed (FY21 Est. $40-75M)
• Enhanced peak service required for physical distancing as ridership recovers


Additional fiscal support from state and federal governments will be required







3


COVID-19 response requires BART to balance 
multiple goals against its strategic goals
BART goals Considerations for this discussion


Economy


Equity


Environment


Experience


Performance


Safety


Workforce


Financial 
stability


How do we ensure BART supports the restart of the economy?


What level of service is necessary to fulfill our needs to essential workers and those that 
cannot work from home? 


How can we encourage a more sustainable recovery with continued use of public transit? 


What can we do to ensure that BART is a safe and healthy way to move around the region?


What level of service is needed to attract riders back onto the system? 


How do we keep our workforce and customers safe and healthy?


What workforce levels allow us to respond to changes in demand?


What tools do we have to address our likely operating gap?


Source: Strategic Plan Framework







4


Transit agencies are seeing unprecedented 
declines in ridership – and fiscal challenges


Source: NJ.com, Boston Globe, New York Times, Chicago Tribune, LAist, Fox 11, Philadelphia Inquirer


Agency


NJ Transit


MBTA


New York MTA


Chicago Transit 
Authority


LA Metro


SEPTA


“By April the agency lost 98% of its ridership and $29 million in fare revenue, 
when only essential workers were riding the system, officials said Thursday”


“[R]idership  [has fallen] more than 90 percent on subways…The MBTA expects 
to fall short of its revenue target by $231 million this fiscal year, a massive 
deficit...”


“The MTA faces a shortfall of up to $8.5 billion even after temporarily scaling 
back service and receiving a $3.8 billion federal bailout”


“The CTA has reported a ridership decline of 80% compared with normal 
periods [and expects] a $551 million drop [in revenue]”


“[In] recent weeks, ridership has plummeted by 70 to 80% [and] losses will 
exceed anything [the agency] gets from the federal government.”


“SEPTA projects at least a $300 million loss of revenue through 
the end of June 2021 — a conservative estimate.”


Current outlook







5


Illustrative


De
m


an
d 


fo
r r


id
er


sh
ip


1


4
2


3


5
Vaccine widely available


Key questions


1


2


3


5


4How deep is the trough?


What does ramp-up look like? What is the post-vaccine next normal?


What is the impact of a potential 
viral resurgence?


What is the pre-vaccine next normal?


Source: BART


X Major driver for FY21 budget


Time


Illustrative progression of ridership


BART has developed an outlook for ridership 
based on epidemiological and economic factors







6


Ridership will depend on public health guidelines, 
economic recovery, and passenger sentiment


Approach


100


~10


~5


~25


~5


~90


~85


~60


~55


“Pre-vaccine next normal”
% relative to pre-COVID1


1 Represents BART ridership before a vaccine is widely available – would be reached in Fall 2020 under “Faster Ramp” scenario
Source: BART FY2021 monthly ridership forecasts, BART rider segmentation survey data, BART historical monthly ridership, Oxford Economics unemployment projections, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics historical unemployment, BART ridership data, COVID 19 Consumer Survey April 2020, Oxford economics jobs by industry in Bay Area counties, Slack HQ, Gartner, KFF


Pre-COVID ridership


Economic impact: 
How many reasons 
will passengers have 
to travel?


Passenger preference: 
Of remaining riders, how 
many work from home?


Public health guidance: 
What fraction of 
vulnerable populations 
will ride BART?


Passenger confidence: 
Of remaining riders, how 
many will choose BART?


FY21 monthly forecasts for ridership with Silicon Valley 
Extension


Assumes impact of unemployment is proportional 
to impact during 2009 recession


In the Bay Area, ~33% of workers have the option of 
working from home, of which ~10% are expected to 
work from home permanently


Assumes 50% of vulnerable population returns to 
BART; this includes adults 65 years and older and 
adults with pre-existing conditions


Assumes riders come back in line with the fraction 
that say they will return “after half my community is 
willing to ride”







7


FY21


Average annual ridership in FY2021 could range from 
15% to 50% of pre-COVID demand


70


60


50


20


0


40


10


30


80


90


100 Pre-COVID ridership baseline


Faster ridership ramp
Achieve 50% pre-COVID annual
ridership in FY21


Slower ridership ramp
Achieve 15% pre-COVID annual 
ridership in FY21~55


~20


Q3 20 Q4 20 Q1 21 Q2 21 Q3 21 Q4 21 Q1 22 Q2 22 Q3 22 Q4 22


Fiscal quarter


Source (scale): BART FY2021 monthly ridership forecasts, BART rider segmentation survey data, BART historical monthly ridership, Oxford Economics unemployment projections, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics historical unemployment, BART ridership data, Consumer Survey April 2020, Oxford economics jobs by industry in Bay Area counties, Slack HQ, Gartner, KFF


Source (timing): SF.gov, San Francisco public health department and the California Department of Public Health, SF Chronicle, pharmaceutical company press releases, Center for 
Disease Control, New York State press coverage, FDA guidance, White House press conferences, World Health Organization


FY21 average of ~50% 
pre-COVID ridership


FY21 average of ~15% 
pre-COVID ridership


Ridership, % of pre-COVID







8


State guidance for transit agencies is “physical 
distancing to maximum extent”


1 COVID-19 Industry Guidance: Public Transit and Intercity Passenger Rail, May 7, 2020 2 “Flying During Corona Virus,” Conde Nast Traveler May 5 2020 and SeatGuru for 
economy-class seats on long-haul flights 3 Based on pre-COVID passenger loads and BART operations review of vehicle geometry


Source: BART Operations, press search, Washington Post, Centers for Disease Control, Conde Nast, airline websites, Star Telegram, ABC


180


60


30


3 foot
distancing


Peak
load


6 foot
distancing


Current guidelines and practice on physical distancing


Key prevention practices include: 
• Physical distancing to the maximum extent 


possible
• Reducing maximum occupancy onboard transit 


and rail vehicles to support physical distancing
• Where possible, using additional buses or 


transit vehicles to support “excess” demand


California 
guidance for public 


transit as of May 
7, 20201


American Airlines: Effort made to assign only 50% 
of main cabin middle seats (provides 1.5-3 feet 
distancing) and will only assign those seats “when 
necessary”


Delta Airlines: No middle seat (1.5-3 feet)


United Airlines: Effort made for no middle seat 
(1.5-3 feet) but “cannot guarantee all passengers 
will be next to unoccupied seat” 


Current US 
commercial 


airlines distancing 
practice2


Car capacity under distancing options, 
Passengers/car3







9


At 50% ridership, physical distancing may impact
our ability to serve passengers during the peak


1 Snapshot from September FY 2021 under “Faster ramp” scenario


Source: BART Operations; PFM system


100


0


50


150


200


SFOWest 
Oakland


Antioch


Yellow Line westbound loadings under physical distancing, average passenger load per car1


Peak train 
(8:02 
dispatch)


Peak 
shoulder 
train    
(9:32 
dispatch)


0


50


150


100


200


West 
Oakland


Antioch SFO


Post-COVID 6’ apart


Pre-COVID ridership
Post-COVID less
than 3’ apart
Post-COVID 3’ apart







10


80


95


99


100


1 Aligns with Stage 4 of California Resilience Roadmap and assumes Faster Ramp scenario, with Reduced Peak and Early Close service level.  Under these scenarios, Stage 2 would last 
through August and Stage 3 would last through February
2 Under ” Faster Ramp” scenario and ” Reduced Peak and Early Close” service level
Source: BART Operations; PFM system, California Department of Public Health


BART could set a range of targets for physical 
distancing


% of demand served2


% of passengers


Possible options through 
End of Shelter-in-Place 
Order1


Six feet


Gradual reduction in 
distancing


Three feet 


No target


Key questions to 
understand


• How to best 
comply with state 
guidance?


• How to gain the 
confidence of our 
riders?


• What will each 
target mean for 
managing 
passenger flows?


Stage 21 Stage 31


6 feet


6 feet


3 feet


3 feet


No target


6 feet


3 feet


Distance by stage of recovery


Current practice







11


In addition to distancing, BART is considering an 
array of other COVID-related operating measures


• Across the world, there are widely varying sets of health policy guidelines, 
alongside varying levels of enforcement 


• There is no one answer for how public transit systems should respond to 
COVID-19, though some type of increased cleaning has been universally 
implemented


• Beyond simply adhering to health policy guidelines, it is critical for public 
transit systems to put in place interventions that increase passenger 
confidence and safeguard customers and staff


• Most variation between systems is seen on:
• PPE and testing for passengers
• Enforcing physical distancing and new norms


Source: Seoulmetro.co.kr, Mediahub.go.kr, International Association of Public Transport, Korea Herald, Metro.Taipei, Taiwan News, Taipei Times, Storm Media, 
Deutschebahn.com, Taggeschau, RBB24, General-Anzeiger,, Gothamist, MTA, NY Post, The Guardian, The Verge, Moovit, Expert interviews







12


BART is evaluating a range of COVID-19 
operating measures


 All measures 
to comply 
with latest 
public health 
authority 
guidance


 Initial 
estimates 
indicate a 
range from 
$40M to $75M 
for annual 
cost of 
measures


Communications campaign


Dynamic workforce planning


New technologies


Enforcing 
new 
norms


Employee presence


Physical layout


Customer touchpoints


Enhanced cleaning regimens


PPE and 
testing


Passenger


Employee


Digital, television, and radio advertisement


Plan for absenteeism and staffing changes to 
minimize staff contact


Thermal imaging cameras, UV light cleaning, 
mobile cleaning robots


Increase public safety and station agent presence


Visual indicators and barriers to direct passengers


Visual ticket inspection and protective barriers


PPE, hand sanitizer provision, and temperature 
checkpoints
PPE and hand sanitizer provision, COVID 
testing, and temperature checkpoints


Disinfecting and more frequent cleaning of 
trains, stations and facilities


Examples of COVID safety measures


Source: Seoulmetro.co.kr, Mediahub.go.kr, International Association of Public Transport, Korea Herald, Metro.Taipei, Taiwan News, Taipei Times, Storm Media, 
Deutschebahn.com, Taggeschau, RBB24, General-Anzeiger,, Gothamist, MTA, NY Post, The Guardian, The Verge, Moovit, Expert interviews







13


A wide range of international responses 
to COVID-19 operation measures exists


Enforcing 
new 
norms


Social distancing target


PPE and 
testing


Enhanced cleaning


Hand sanitizer


Mask requirement
Mask provision2


Communications 
campaign


Dynamic workforce 
planning


Plan for absenteeism


Worker contact minimization


New technologies


Passenger


PPE provision 
Symptom screening


Employee COVID-19 testing


Employee


Visual indicators (e.g., decals, app)


Physical barriers to direct traffic flow1


Physical 
layout


Contactless payment
Customer 


touchpoints


Increased public safety presence


Increased staff presence


Train, station, and facility cleaning


Digital, television, and radio 
advertising


Employee 
presence


Fully implemented
Partially implemented or under consideration
No evidence


Y


In discussion Thermal imaging Mobile cleaning 
robots


Cameras to 
track mask-


wearing
Electrostatic 


sprayers


BART planned Seoul Taipei Deutsche Bahn Paris (RATP) New York


-


1 California guidelines recommend either visual indicators or physical barriers to direct traffic flow 2 BART currently providing donated masks at some stations
Source: International Association of Public Transport, “COVID-19 Industry Guidance: Public Transit and Intercity Rail,” California Department of Health, CalSTA, CalOSHA, May 
2020, Seoulmetro.co.kr, Mediahub.go.kr, Korea Herald, Metro.Taipei, Taiwan News, Taipei Times, Storm Media, Deutschebahn.com, Taggeschau, RBB24, General-Anzeiger,, 
Gothamist, MTA, NY Post, The Guardian, The Verge, Moovit, Expert interviews


NONEXHAUSTIVE


No intervention
Recommended under CA guidelines


6 feet 6 feet 5 feet 5-6 feet 3 feet 6 feet







14


While service reductions could reduce expenditures by 
15%, BART may only be able to meet 65% of rider demand


1 In line with June bid staffing levels 2 Assumes 6’ physical distancing across all service options and Faster Ramp scenario


Source: BART O&M Cost Model, BART PFM Database, Center for Disease Control


8


(52)


(137)


(202)


0


~65


~90


~85


~80


~25


More 
service


Less 
service


Service 
options


Enhanced pre-
COVID train 
schedule


Cost impact compared 
to pre-COVID schedule,
$M FY21


Reduced peak 
and early 
close1


Half pre-
COVID 
schedule


Normal pre-
COVID train 
schedule 


Demand served, %2


Minimum 
service


Head-
ways


15-min


Add’l peak 
service


48 trains,   
8 hours per 
day


Daily service 
hours


15-min


30-min


15-min


None


None


24 trains,   
4 hours per 
day


5AM-9PM


5AM-9PM


5AM-12AM


5AM-12AM


60-min None 5AM-9PM







15


Given projected demand and increased COVID 
costs, we evaluated several service plans


Source: BART Performance and Budget


FY21 ($M)


Potential Service Plans


Minimum service Half pre-COVID 
schedule


Reduced peak and 
early close


Normal pre-COVID 
schedule


Enhanced pre-
COVID schedule


Routes 3 5 5 5 5


Headways 60 30 15 15 (+rush trains) 15 (+ add’l rush 
trains)


Hours of Service 5am-9pm 5am-9pm 5am-9pm 5am-12am 5am-12am


Peak Cars 219 431 609 709 709


Peak Trains 22 44 62 72 72


Total Car Miles (M) 17.1 45.0 82.3 92.1 95.6
Budget (Total Uses of 
Funds) ($M) $725 $790 $875 $927 $934


Budget Delta ($M) ($202) ($137) ($52) - $8
% Change from Pre-COVID 
Schedule (21%) (16%) (4%) - 1%


Total FTEs 2,531 2,868 3,334 3,585 3,616


FTE Difference (1,054) (717) (251)* - 31


% FTE Change from Pre-
COVID Schedule (29%) (20%) (7%)* - 1%


* Vacant positions only; FTEs in this scenario reduced through inactivating vacant positions







16


From these we developed 3 options…


Source: BART Performance and Budget


FY21 Working Income Statement Option A Option B Option C


Service Level Half pre-COVID schedule Reduced peak and early 
close


Enhanced pre-COVID 
service


Revenue Scenario Slower ramp Midpoint Faster ramp
Sources ($M)
Fare revenue 69 145 222
Capacity constraint (4) (4) (18)
Parking 5 10 16
Other operating 27 29 31
Sales tax proceeds 226 239 252
SFO & SVBX assistance 83 75 71
Other assistance 118 119 119
Total Revenues 525 614 693
CARES tranche 1 (FY20 remainder) 75 75 75
CARES tranche 2 (targeted) 164 164 164
Total Sources 764 853 932


Uses ($M)
Labor & benefits 540 601 628
Power 40 48 56
Non-labor 146 162 168
Debt Service 47 47 47
Allocations 17 17 28
COVID expenses (estimate) 75 75 75
Total Uses 865 950 1,002
Net Result (101) (97) (70)
Net Result less CARES Tranche 2 (265) (261) (234)







17


Staff 
Rec 


Staff recommendation


Source: BART O&M Cost Model, BART PFM Database, Center for Disease Control


More 
service


Less 
service


8


(52)


(137)


(202)


0


Service options


Enhanced pre-
COVID train 
schedule


Cost impact 
compared to 
pre-COVID 
schedule, $M 
FY21


Reduced peak 
and early close1


Half pre-COVID 
schedule


Normal pre-
COVID train 
schedule 


Demand 
served, %2


Minimum 
service


• Begin FY21 Q1 with budget for with ‘Option B: Reduced Peak and 
Early Close’


• Staffing/expense budget supports 15 min peak headways on 
each line and COVID 19 response


• July service schedule will likely begin with 30 min headways, 
but with staffing available to scale up to 15 min headways as 
required


• Make case to regional partners, Sacramento and Washington that 
the Bay Area needs more BART service to meet public health and 
economic recovery goals; pursue additional emergency funding


• Monitor new information:
• Pace of ridership/fare revenue recovery
• Pace of economic recovery
• Public health mandates (added expense) 
• CARES Act second tranche allocation


• If demand and revenue are low, be prepared with strategies to 
maintain fiscal stability:


• Implement ‘Option A: Half Pre COVID Schedule’ (Requires 
reductions in force / furloughs)


• Reverse prior year capital allocations
• Consider prudent use of reserves


• If demand is high, be prepared with strategies to serve the region:
• Plan to scale up to ‘Option C: Enhanced pre-COVID Service’
• Prepare operations and access strategy to spread peak and 


manage loads to maximize available peak capacity


1 In line with June bid staffing levels 2 Assumes 6’ physical distancing across all service options and Faster Ramp scenario


~25


~90


~80


~85


~65







18


FY21 Budget – budget checkpoints


Planned Dates Topic


June 25 Budget Adoption


July 1 FY21 Begins


October Meeting Q1 Budget Update, Checkpoint
Assess changes to:
Pace of ridership/fare revenue recovery
Pace of economic recovery
Public health mandates/added expense
CARES Act 2nd tranche allocation


January Meeting Q2 Budget Update, Checkpoint


April Meeting Q3 Budget Update, Checkpoint


Source: BART Performance and Budget







Appendix







20


FEMA Public Assistance
• Emergency Operation Center costs
• Training specific to the declared event
• Disinfection of eligible public facilities
• Technical assistance to state, tribal, territorial or local governments on 


emergency management and control of immediate threats to public health 
and safety


• FEMA currently reimbursing 
COVID-19 measures under 
category B of Public Assistance


• BART staff is working with State 
government to determine which 
expenses are reimbursable


• Window for reimbursement will 
close at a point determined by the 
Federal government 


• Staff understands that reimbursable 
categories include:


• Facility disinfection
• Purchase and distribution 


of commodities (e.g., PPE, 
gloves)


• Emergency Operations 
Center


• COVID-related 
communications


Summary of Category B items


Management, 
control and 
reduction of 
immediate threats 
to public health 
and safety


• Non-deferrable medical treatment of infected persons in a shelter or 
temporary medical facility


• Related medical facility services and supplies
• Temporary medical facilities and/or enhanced medical/hospital capacity
• Use of specialized medical equipment
• Medical waste disposal
• Emergency medical transport


Emergency medical 
care


• All sheltering must be conducted in accordance with standards and/or 
guidance approved by HHS/CDC and must be implemented in a manner 
that incorporates social distancing measures


• Non-congregate medical sheltering is subject to prior approval by FEMA 
and is limited to that which is reasonable and necessary to address the 
public health needs of the event, is pursuant to the direction of appropriate 
public health officials and does not extend beyond the duration of the 
Public Health Emergency.


Medical sheltering


• Household pet sheltering and containment actions
• Purchase and distribution of food, water, ice, medicine, and other 


consumable supplies, to include personal protective equipment and 
hazardous material suits movement of supplies and persons.


• Security and law enforcement
• Communications of general health and safety information to the public.
• Search and rescue to locate and recover members of the population
• Reimbursement for state, tribe, territory and/or local government force 


account overtime costs


Other items


Source: “Coronavirus Eligible Emergency Protective Measures,” FEMA Public Assistance Program via fema.gov, March 19,2020







21


Ridership decrease in Asia has not been as 
sharp - health crisis and measures have been less severe


R
id


er
sh


ip
 re


la
tiv


e 
to


 p
re


-C
O


VI
D


 b
as


el
in


e


29


90


05 12


10


19 03
5


75


02


25
20


15


30


19


100


15


35
40
45


12


50


26


55


08


65


85


2316


80


70


09 26


95


105


01


110
115


22


120


60


Pre-outbreak = 100


• Taiwan has 440 COVID-19 
cases and 6 COVID-19 
deaths; South Korea, 10822 
cases and 256 deaths; Hong 
Kong, 1045 cases and 4 
deaths


• These countries have had less 
severe lockdowns and have 
used public health experience 
from the 2003 SARS epidemic


• Ridership has been slower 
to ramp back up in Taipei 
and Seoul than it has been in 
Hong Kong


• Non-BART data is from Moovit
app usage, not official agency 
statistics


Daily ridership as % of pre-epidemic baseline


Seoul
Taipei Hong Kong


BART


BART


Source: Moovit, BART, Johns Hopkins University, Worldometer


Jan Feb Mar Apr May







22


Ridership decrease in Europe has been sharp, 
though recent signs of improvement


R
id


er
sh


ip
 re


la
tiv


e 
to


 p
re


-C
O


VI
D


 b
as


el
in


e


25


01 12


120


22


95


35


10
5


20


105


40


15


55
60


30


100


45


0305 26


90


50


19


70
65


80
85


2915


75


110


08


115


Pre-outbreak = 100


• Austria has 15,774 COVID-19 
cases and 614 COVID-19 
deaths; Denmark, 10,416 
cases and 522 deaths


• European systems that have 
suffered similar declines in 
ridership to BART have 
already shown 
improvements in ridership
as lockdowns have eased


• Vienna has climbed from a 
trough of ~20% ridership 
relative to pre-COVID baseline 
in late April to ~30% today


• Copenhagen has climbed from 
a trough of ~20% in late April 
to ~35% today


• Non-BART data is from Moovit
app usage, not official agency 
statistics


Daily ridership as % of pre-epidemic baseline, indexed to start of outbreak


Copenhagen
Vienna BART


Mar Apr May


Source: Moovit, BART,  Johns Hopkins University


BART





		FY21 Budget Outlook

		General Manager introduction

		Budget summary

		COVID-19 response requires BART to balance �multiple goals against its strategic goals

		Transit agencies are seeing unprecedented �declines in ridership – and fiscal challenges

		BART has developed an outlook for ridership �based on epidemiological and economic factors

		Ridership will depend on public health guidelines, economic recovery, and passenger sentiment

		Average annual ridership in FY2021 could range from �15% to 50% of pre-COVID demand

		State guidance for transit agencies is “physical distancing to maximum extent”

		At 50% ridership, physical distancing may impact�our ability to serve passengers during the peak

		BART could set a range of targets for physical distancing

		In addition to distancing, BART is considering an array of other COVID-related operating measures

		BART is evaluating a range of COVID-19 operating measures

		A wide range of international responses to COVID-19 operation measures exists

		While service reductions could reduce expenditures by 15%, BART may only be able to meet 65% of rider demand

		Given projected demand and increased COVID costs, we evaluated several service plans

		From these we developed 3 options…

		Staff recommendation

		FY21 Budget – budget checkpoints

		Appendix

		FEMA Public Assistance

		Ridership decrease in Asia has not been as �sharp - health crisis and measures have been less severe

		Ridership decrease in Europe has been sharp, �though recent signs of improvement






West Oakland Transit-Oriented Development
May 14, 2020 Board Meeting







1


Site Plan


T1


T3 T4


T2







2


Transit-Oriented Development Plaza & Paseo Areas







3


July 2014 West Oakland Specific Plan & EIR Adopted by City


Dec. 2014 Board authorizes Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) w/ China 
Harbour Engineering Company, Ltd (CHEC)


Dec. 2015 Community Advisory Committee is formed 


Oct. 2017 Development “Pre-Application” is submitted to City


Feb. 2019 City approves Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) – project is 
entitled (w/ State Affordable Housing Bonus Density)


Resulting Height Limits:
T1 – 320’ height limit, up from 100’ in specific plan 
T3 – 80’ height limit, up from 60’ in specific plan 
T4 – 100’, no change for now  


Dec. 2019 Application for PDP refinement and Final Development


West Oakland TOD: Progress to Date







4


Development Plan
Current plan addresses numerous BART objectives:


• High density housing (522 high-rise units – Parcel T1)
• Affordable housing (240 units - 31% of total – Parcel T3)
• Office space (300,000 SF promote ridership and reverse 


commute – Parcel T4)
• Retail space throughout (~50,000 SF in ground floors)
• Also includes bike station, plaza improvements, Project 


Stabilization Agreement, ground lease, etc.







5


BART Station Profile Survey (2015)







6


Station Access Improvements
1. Urban w/ Parking Typology
2. 400+ parking spaces to be 


removed
3. Activated, landscaped 


Plaza/station entryway
4. Raised, protected cycletracks on 


7th St and Mandela Parkway
5. Efficient and organized AC 


Transit/pickup-dropoff zones
6. New secure bike parking station 


for ~400 bikes
7. New network of pedestrian-only paseos and paths through site
8. Upgraded crosswalks and widened sidewalks







7


West Oakland TOD Ridership Projection


• Housing, retail & office capture rates exceed ridership lost from parking


• 1,801 new BART trips per day from the TOD


• Some existing ridership will be lost from reduced BART parking 







8


Development Team Proposed Assignment


•China Harbour Engineering Company, Ltd – current ENA 
holder


•Mandela Station Partners, LLC – single purpose entity & 
proposed assignee


Proposed Managing Members
•MacFarlane Partners, LLC – Proposed Master 


Development/Managing Member
•Strategic Urban Development Alliance (SUDA), LLC –


proposed Master Developer/ Managing Member
•CHEC may stay on as an investor for one or more of the 


projects







9


West Oakland Specific Plan Final EIR


West Oakland Specific Plan EIR Approval by City
• West Oakland Specific Plan and EIR, approved 7/15/14
• West Oakland TOD project specific CEQA Addendum, approved 


2/6/19 (no substantial increase in severity of impacts noted) 


BART Approval of CEQA Findings Required
• City of Oakland is “Lead Agency” for CEQA
• BART is “Responsible Agency” for CEQA
• Staff will recommend Board approval of the West Oakland Specific 


Plan EIR as Amended for the West Oakland TOD







10


Upcoming  Board Motion


Staff expects to return to the Board on May 28, 
2020 with a proposed motion seeking:


1) CEQA concurrence 


2) Approval to enter into Lease Option 
Agreement


3) Subject to further discussion, an additional 
motion may be needed for an ENA assignment








Silicon Valley BART Extension: 


Phase 1 Update


Board of Directors Presentation


May 14, 2020







Framework for Revenue Service


2


• Ongoing Pre-Revenue Operations Simulations 


• Green diamonds represent completed milestones; red diamonds are upcoming milestones


FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEPT


Discrepancies Resolution 


Traction Power Changes


Train Control Changes


Remove Train Control Restrictions


Remaining Testing


BART Labor Bidding Process for 


Operations


Pre-Revenue Training, Operations


CPUC Safety Certification Review 


VTA-BART Assemble and Submit 


Safety Certification Report to CPUC







Status of Discrepancies
As of May 7th, 2020 


3


Notes:
* Includes discrepancies with pending BART verification & closure evidence review


Description Open Closed Total 


Required Before Revenue Service (Category A) 30 702 732


Required Post-Revenue (Category B) 297 418 715


Grand Total 327 1120 1447







4


Current Risks


High
• COVID 19


• CPUC System & Safety Certification


Medium
• Monitor Automated Train Control (ATC) & Rail Intrusion Detection System 


(RIDS) testing


• Resolve Revenue-Required Discrepancies


• Implementation of Train Control Change Orders and Non Conformance 







5


Current Progress


1. Train Control design changes successfully tested (dynamic)


• Static testing ongoing


2. Traction Power System completed 


3. BART Train Operator familiarization training 95% complete


4. Traction power and RIDS maintenance training ongoing                        
(May 2020 completion) 


5. Documentation and Testing


6. BART Labor Bid  well underway







6


Current Progress


7. Pre-Revenue Operations Simulation (started April 20th)


• Running trains in a loop from Warm Springs Extension on     
a 15-minute headway  


• Simulated Orange and Green Line services initiated


8. Weekly workshops with CPUC on Safety & Security Certification


• BART's plans, rules and procedures, training and 
emergency drills certified


• CPUC has begun to preview digital archive 


9. Weekly meetings with various stake holders to discuss readiness 
for revenue







Passenger 
Experience


BART Police & Santa Clara Sherriff's Departments


Destination Sign Activation


Automatic Fare Collection Equipment Readiness


Station Readiness


Station Transit Information Display (TID)


Freeway Signage


Station Name Panels


Braille Sign


BART Maps


BART Fare Schedules


Community Relations


BART Basics Brochure


Revenue Service Preparedness







Revenue Service Preparedness- Current BART Map


8


The extension requires significant rescaling to create 


the space needed to add South Bay details


Antioch-SFO/ Millbrae Line 


- Dublin/Pleasanton -Daly City line -- Richmond-Warm Springs/ 
South Fremont line 


Warm Springs /South Fremont
Daly City Line 
NOfVfNll/li0•5UNDAl'5E""1'(.( 


- ~~~~~~n! _~1~~J~11~ line 


- ~!?vr:~j~Rbl~~.~~~c~!: 


0000 
CXX) 


Oakland International Airport {OAK) 
srRVICC BnwrCN COIISfUIII .. OAKI.AND 
JNTERNArroNALAJl!l'ORrsr,o,nONS 


TransferSt<1tion 


'Tl"ansferSt ationfor Service t o 
Oakland International Airport 


11111111 Futurl! BART Sl!rvic•- Approv•d o r Plann• d 


Q BART Parking 


0 
Oakland 


International 
Airport (OAK) 


San Francisco 
0 1nternational 


Airport (SFO) 


PENINSULA 


For real-time information, visit www.bart.gov 


Pittsburg 
Centero Antioeho 


EAST BAY 


West Dublin/ 
Pleasanton o 


Dubli n/Pleasantono 







Revenue Service Preparedness- Updated BART Map


9


Changes were made to de-clutter the map and better highlight regional transit 


connectivity points







10


Next Steps


• Address discrepancies required prior to Revenue Service


• Complete all required training 


• Stations being readied for passenger service


• CPUC's System Safety certification is being prepared for final 
submission







QUESTIONS?


11







